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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? 

Have you read the grants criteria? 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? 
 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: South Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust 
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Ruth Power (Trustee) 
 

 

Daytime Telephone:  01539725855    E-mail: ruth.power@finman.co.uk 

 

Address: Boskins, Newbiggin, Carnforth, Lancs, LA6 2PL 
(work: Financial Management Bureau, Shenstone House, Helsington, Kendal) 
 

1. Please tell us about your organisation: 
 
The Pool continues to go from strength to strength as user numbers stay very healthy and the 
range of groups that use the facility wide and varied. For the benefit of new councillors who may 
not know about the work of the pool, the core function is providing services to the most 
vulnerable and disadvantaged members of our community by supporting those with long term or 
short term disabilities. There are goups of physio led and self managed patients who have been 
referred by their GP and as many as 10 community groups such as Headway and Cancercare 
using the pool which is warm, very hygienic and has specialist equipment. The pool therapy 
enables them to move more easily, control pain and build self confidence. 
At the moment we are having a survey to see how the roof can be changed to accommodate our 
plans to put in place solar panels right across the building. The current roof is unable to spport 
this, but the use of solar energy will greatly reduce our running costs. 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for: 
 
The responsibility for the pool is shared by CCC and The Trust. We are responsible for raising 
funds to maintain and improve the pool.  
A certain level of grant funding is necessary for the general running of the pool and for repairs 
just to keep the pool going.  
 
Any grant available from Kendal Town Council is directly used to finance the everyday running of 
the pool, which has continued to generate significant income from pool users and donations. 
 
As energy costs continue to rise we are hoping to begin work on a new roof quite soon and have 
raised over £50,000 from other sources so far in addition to our usual funding sources. 
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
 
Our support from public bodies such as KTC, SLDC, CCC and the NHS is very much 
appreciuated and enables us to plan for a long term future. We know how precious this public  
money is and how many demands are made on it. We very m,uch welcome and are greatful for 
all the support we have received from Kendal Town Council in the past and hopefully into the 
future. 
 
The unique nature of our structure can sometimes slow us down, for instance consulting with 
CCC to enable us to make chamges to the building, but we believe it is these partnerships and 
the shared expertise which help us deliver such an outstanding and valuable service to the 
community. 
 
I attach the recently published 2016/17 report which details the statistics on user numbers and 
their feeback so you can see the successful year we had. The case studies within the report 
illustrate clearly how typical users, many of whom live in Kendal Wards, benefit from the pool in 
terms of increased mobility and physical health as well as confidence and well being. Not to 
mention the social aspect of getting out of the houe and meeting other people, often in a similar 
position to themselves.  
 
I also attach the recent results of our MYMOP survey (Measure Your Own Medical Outcomes 
Profile) so you can see the positive impact the pool has on the health of our clients. 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
 
The pool has a special place in the hearts of the people of Kendal. Our 40th anniversary year last 
year was a huge success, with fundraising by our “Friends” committee every month. Our Birthday 
Party at the Castle Street Centre in November was attended by people from all walks of life; 
people who have been associated with the pool past and present.  
 
We are very lucky to have access to hydrotherapy in the town, it is not commonplace and we 
recognise it might be seen as a luxury. But the many people who use it (21,500 visits in 2017) do 
not regard it as a luxury, more of a lifeline. 
 
It is heavily subsidised by public funds, but that is by no means the whole picture. User pool fees 
make up almost 60% of our income. 
 
The money we have been raising via the friends and additional grants in the last couple of years 
has paid for some smaller alterations and new equipment, but has mostly been set aside partly 
for our contingency fund (which especially with difficulties obtaining NHS funding this year will be 
very important)  but increasingly for our sustainability/green energy project.  

Total cost of project or service £              Amount requested £3000 

Funds received to date  £        Funds pledged to date £ 
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
 
SLDC £3500 

 
Cumbria County Council £43000 

 
LIP grant SLDC (for sustainability project) 
 

£15000 

 
NHS m(in consultation) £ 

 
 £ 

Total Funds Raised £75,500 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
CCC has a range of performance measures to ensure the pool is managed appropriately and in 
terms of health and safety which is obviously crucial to the running of the pool.. 
We use statistical evidence for pool usage and anecdotal feedback from pool users. We use this 
evidence to monitor how well attended and how successful particular session. 
I also attach our latest annual report with usage figures. 
 
 
 

 
Signed:         Date:  
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
 
Organisation’s Account Name…………………………………………………………………… 
 
Sort Code:..……………………………  Account Number: ………………..………………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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1.0 Welcome
It gives me great pleasure to welcome you to the 
Annual Report for Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool 
for 2016-17. In what has been a year of continued 
progress at the Pool, it is pleasing to report on a 
number of positive developments that will make a real 
difference to the lives of many existing and new Pool 
users alike.

The Pool was built in 1977 through donations received 
through public subscription for the children and adults 
in the community who have mental and physical 
health problems. The fundraising was led by members 
of Westmorland Mencap, who have continued their 
support for the Pool ever since, more latterly through 
the Trustees of South Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust. I 
would like to put on record my thanks to the members 
of the Trust for their continued drive and commitment 
to the Pool and the development of the services it 
provides.

Due to the unique nature of the services provided at 
the Pool, it has been possible to secure long term 
partnership funding arrangements with a number 
of key stakeholders, these being Cumbria Clinical 
Commissioning Group, South Lakeland District 
Council, and Kendal Town Council. Again, it is worth 
noting the vital role that this partnership funding plays 
in securing the long term sustainability of the Pool, 
and I do hope that even in these challenging economic 
times that these arrangements can be continued. 

Further additional fundraising has been co-ordinated 
on an on-going basis by the South Lakeland 
Hydrotherapy Trust, which has led to significant 
improvements being made to the Pool building, and 
an increase in the level of service provided to Pool 
users.  The Trust are now focussing their efforts on 
securing investment to further reduce operating costs 
and increase energy efficiency at the pool, and we 
will work with them on this worthwhile project moving 
forward.

I would draw your attention to the case studies 
contained later in this Report, which bring to life the 
real difference the Pool and the services provided 
make to people of all ages from the South of Cumbria. 
They really do make for inspirational reading! 

I would like to end this Welcome by expressing my 
thanks to Gretl and the rest of the Team at the Pool 
for their continued hard work and commitment to 
providing fantastic service to the users of the Pool.

I hope you enjoy reading the rest of the Report.

Cllr Nick Cotton
Chair of South Lakeland Local Committee

http://sandgatehydrotherapypool.org/
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2.1 Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool offers a unique 
service to the population of Cumbria, the 
benefits of hydrotherapy have been well 
known for many years. The Pool offers these 
benefits in a supportive, non-competitive 
environment that affords privacy. Key benefits 
for Pool users include the ability to:

•	 Move more easily
•	 Relax your body
•	 Regain fitness following an operation  

or accident
•	 Ease pain
•	 Perform gentle all body exercises
•	 Improve circulation and breathing
•	 Build self confidence

2.2 The Pool has a number of key objectives 
which include: 

•	 To provide therapy at an affordable cost
•	 To	provide	a	Pool	heated	to	94˚F	(10˚F	

higher than a public swimming pool)
•	 To provide personal/specialist sessions
•	 To facilitate confidence building and 

emotional support
•	 To provide an environment for social  

interaction
•	 To maintain and improve the Pool facilities
•	 To provide a leisure facility for the disabled  

and their families
•	 To provide hydrotherapy courses for 

professionals and carers

2.3 A further advantage is that referrals to use 
the Pool can be made through a number of 
different sources, these include through a 
General	Practitioner	(G.P.),	through	a	Hospital	
Consultant, via a Physiotherapist, or through a 
group session booked by a number of existing 
voluntary organisations for the disabled, 
including: 

•	 Cancer Care
•	 Arthritis Care
•	 Multiple Sclerosis
•	 Breast Care 
•	 Stroke Club
•	 Sight Advice
•	 Adult learning and training groups
•	 Whinfell Office Skills Project
•	 Whinfell and Windmill

2.4 The Pool is staffed by a small Team 
of dedicated professionals, who are all 
qualified and experienced in providing the 
most appropriate service to Pool users on 
an individual basis. Additional specialist 
physiotherapists are also used in specific 
cases to ensure that the users benefit as 
much as possible from the hydrotherapy.

2.5 Further information regarding the progress and 
achievements of the previous year are detailed 
in this Report along with some real examples 
of where the provision of hydrotherapy 
services has benefitted individuals from 
across Cumbria.

2.6 For further information please contact the Pool 
Manager on 01539 724818.

2.0 Introduction
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3.0 Progress and Achievements

21,610 individual visits to 
the pool in the year new referrals

made to the pool

162

of pool 
users 
stated that 
the quality 
of the 
service 
provided 
at the pool 
was very 
good or 
excellent

of pool users would 
                 recommend the 
pool 89% 

self-management session 
visits during the year13,399

88%
group 

users visits 
throughout 

the year

4,575
young 
people 
visits 
during 
the 
year

1,316
of pool users stated that 
the professionalism 
and helpfulness of 
staff was very good 
or excellent

89%

Knowledgeable, professional, and 
100% commitment from the staff.

Friendly atmosphere and very efficient 
helpful staff. When asking for help 
nothing is too much trouble.

Staff are kind and helpful, significant 
physical and social benefits.

Welcoming, non-judgemental, social, 
prevents depression, prevents social 
isolation, would be far worse off without 
it leading to bigger drain on NHS 
resources.

The main strengths of the pool are the 
staff, their discretion, professional and 
technical knowledge, plus the kindness 
and empathy they have with the pool 
users.

more
pool visits

5.4%
than 

2015-16

http://sandgatehydrotherapypool.org/
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To help evaluate the difference the hydrotherapy services make to the lives of pool users, we have introduced 
an annual cycle of surveys to assess the benefits derived by clients from using the pool and its services. The 
MYMOP questionnaire is completed on two occasions over a period of time and measures the differences in the 
responses provided, to determine whether they feel better about the symptoms for which they were referred to 
the pool.

The first year of the survey has provided some really valuable information around reported improvements in the 
initial symptoms, as well as respondents reporting an increased capability to undertake a range of activities, and 
also an improvement in general wellbeing.

A full copy of the evaluation report is available on request, and the survey will be undertaken each year during 
the Autumn period, focussing on new pool clients.

4.0	Measure	Yourself	Medical	Outcome	Profile	
(MYMOP)
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5.0 Case Studies

This section provides a range of case studies demonstrating the impact the Pool and the services provided has 
had to the lives of Pool users.

Aims and objectives of Sandgate 
Hydrotherapy Pool Use
The Headway Group sessions currently take place 
once a week for 45 minutes. The majority of the 
members of the group have neurological related 
issues, which often manifest into weakness in one 
side of the body, in either upper and/or lower limbs. 
A number of the members use a wheelchair and are 
unable to walk on dry land.

Members of the Group are keen to improve their 
mobility and strengthen their affected limbs. Aims 
include being able to walk into the pool, and being 
able to walk the full length of the pool.

How we went about achieving the aims 
and objectives
Each session is led by a physiotherapist, and a 
range of supported exercises are undertaken. These 
include supported swimming, leg kicking, and lots of 
balance exercises, as well as walking with support.

How successful were we in achieving our aims 
and objectives
The majority of the Group feel that they have not 
reached their aim yet. They continue to attend 
sessions and work hard to make improvements. 
One of the key barriers they do feel they are 
improving is one of confidence, and having the 
belief within themselves to trust their limbs again. 
Members agree that confidence levels are growing 
as a result of the sessions, and that the social side 
of the session is also having a positive benefit.

Success factors and lessons learnt
The Headway Group sessions continue to provide 
a great experience for members, with mobility and 
strength increasing in many of the members. The 
social aspects of the group also provide many 
members with one of few social experiences during 
the course of a week.

Case Study – Headway Group

http://sandgatehydrotherapypool.org/
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Case Study – Jane Duxbury
Aims and objectives of Sandgate 
Hydrotherapy Pool Use
Jane contracted Guillain Barre Syndrome, a rare 
neurological condition in December 2015 which left 
her initially paralysed and in hospital for 6 months. 
When she returned home she was unable to walk 
or use her hands and arms, and needed full time 
care. Jane slowly started to recover but required 
an environment to challenge her body safely, with 
a goal of safely rebuilding weak muscles and to 
activate muscle memory. A number of specific aims 
were identified including: -
•	 Enter the pool independently using steps and 

move around the pool safely;
•	 Build confidence in water and learn to swim 

again;
•	 Identify changing and dressing strategies with the 

carer in a supportive environment;
•	 Find exercises which relaxed painful joints and 

muscles.

How we went about achieving the aims 
and objectives
Jane attends the Pool 3 times every 2 weeks for 
1 hour per visit. To begin with she entered the 
pool via the hoist, and attended a physiotherapist 
led session. She was content to walk around with 
support using a variety of floats which helped her 
confidence and started to aid movement. Jane then 
progressed to attending sessions with her family as 

well as the physiotherapist led sessions, during which 
she completed exercises suggested by the physio. 
Jane’s confidence increased further and she began 
experimenting to see what else she could do. She 
has since learnt how to float and get her legs back 
down again, and to swim, which she achieved after a 
few weeks, she has also made use of special gloves 
supplied by the pool to help her move the water as 
her fingers will not close.

How successful were we in achieving our aims 
and objectives
Jane is very clear that her aim has been achieved. 
She can now attend her local pool with her carer or 
family and manages to get in with minimum support; 
she has developed her own working strategies to 
manage changing and getting dressed. Jane is 
increasing her capability and capacity to swim and 
although this is done very slowly, she now completes 
26 lengths each week. 

Success Factors and lessons learnt
The sessions at the Pool have provided Jane with 
increased mobility, strength, and importantly self-
belief. She has given herself a huge confidence 
boost, and helped her to feel that she can continue to 
make progress and return to a normal active life.

A safe and friendly 
place to exercise and 
relearn how to swim



Aims and Objectives of Sandgate 
Hydrotherapy Pool Use
Marion was referred to the pool to aid her recovery 
from a cracked sacrum, following a fall. She was 
suffering from a great deal of pain whilst walking. 
At home, she had a stair lift installed and was using 
crutches to help her to move around. Marion also 
had bronchiectasis which requires antibiotics when 
infection occurs. In addition to this Marion has type 
1 diabetes and has used insulin for the past 64 
years. 

How we went about achieving the aims 
and objectives
Marion attends the pool for 1 self-management 
session each week, and she wants to improve her 
balance, which has been impaired since her fall. 
To begin with she exercised at the side of the pool 
by the rail until she was confident enough to do 
something else. She then started walking across the 
pool numerous times to improve her balance and 
strengthen her legs. Once this was achieved she 
incorporated use of hand weights to gain muscle 
strength in her upper body.

How successful were we in achieving our aims 
and objectives
Marion feels she has improved a lot but would still 
like to work more on her balance, and to be able 
to move more freely out of the water. She feels 
the weekly sessions are helpful for her day to day 
living and an important aide for her to maintain her 
independent living. 

Success Factors and lessons learnt
Marion’s confidence has grown considerably since 
she started using the pool. Her body is stronger, and 
she feels that the exercises provided by the staff at 
the pool have had a significant impact on her quality 
of life, and general wellbeing.

Case Study – Marion Taylor
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When I went to 
my first session on crutches 

and I was lowered into the pool, I 
burst into tears as it was the first 

time in so long that I had been 
without pain!! I find the staff at the 
pool very helpful, welcoming and 

always ready to offer 
advice when needed. The 

environment is 
always clean

http://sandgatehydrotherapypool.org/
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5.1 The Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool Staff Team 
is employed by Cumbria County Council and 
the Pool is housed within the Health and Care 
Services Directorate.

5.2 Staff are bound by Cumbria County Council 
policies and procedures which relate to human 
resources, financial compliance, and health 
and safety amongst others.

5.3 Line management for the staff is provided 
through Active Cumbria, with the democratic 
accountability and budget for the Pool being 
held by the South Lakeland Local Committee. 

5.4 To continue to develop the Pool further, 
Cumbria County Council and the South 
Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust have agreed to 
work in partnership. Each organisation has a 
clear remit in this partnership and these are 
articulated below.

5.5 The Role of Cumbria County Council 
Cumbria County Council is responsible for 
the safe and efficient operation of the Pool, 
specific roles include: 

•	 Financial accountability including efficient 
procurement;

•	 All aspects of health and safety and 
meeting relevant legislation;

•	 All aspects of human resources as 
employers of the Pool staff;

•	 Ensuring staff are trained to required 
standards, so as to provide a ‘perfect’ 
experience for Pool users based on need;

•	 Admission price policy;
•	 Marketing and promotion of the Pool and 

the services it provides both internally and 
externally;

•	 On-going maintenance of the Pool plant 
and building.

5.6 The Role of South Lakeland 
Hydrotherapy Trust

 In support of Cumbria County Council, the 
South Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust has 
agreed to provide a range of support and 
advisory functions. These include: 

•	 Fundraising in the local community to 
continue to improve the Pool facilities and 
services;

•	 Advice on financial matters including 
appropriate admission prices;

•	 Promotion of the Pool and the services 
provided;

•	 Advice on health and safety matters;
•	 Opportunities for the development of 

services and the Pool building.

5.7 Summary financial statements for the 
operation of the Pool in 2016-17 financial 
year are as follows.

6.0 Governance and Accounts

Actual Amount 
£

Income
Partnership Funding 13,870
Operational Income – Individuals 75,545
Operational Income – Groups 11,350
CCC - South Lakeland 
Local Committee 

46,246

Total Income 147,011

Expenditure
Salaries, On-Costs and CPD 75,505
Supplies and Services 25,906
Premises 32,009
Capital Charges 10,509
Total Expenditure 143,929

Balance of Income 
over Expenditure

3,092

These	figures	are	provisional	until	approved	by	the	
Official	Auditor	as	at	30.09.17.
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The priority work areas identified for 2017-18 all contribute to the continuing development of the services offered 
at the Pool. 

7.0 Priorities for 2017-18

Ambition 1: Deliver financial efficiencies to ensure the on-going sustainability of the Pool
Outcomes Priority Work Areas
•	 Continued	efficiencies	in	the	operation	of	the	

Pool have been realised.
•	 Opportunities	for	Pool	improvements	leading	
to	long	term	financial	savings	have	been	
identified.

•	 Usage	figures	continue	to	increase,	thereby	
maximising	income	potential.

•	 Work	with	representatives	from	Cumbria	County	Council	and	South	Lakeland	
Hydrotherapy	Trust	to	explore	ways	in	which	energy	costs	can	be	reduced	further.

•	 Increase	attendance	levels	at	all	adult	casual	classes	to	a	minimum	of	14	per	
session.

•	 Identify	appropriate	opportunities	for	increased	usage	of	the	Pool.

Ambition 2: Ensure the Pool is safe, friendly and offers a welcoming environment
Outcomes Priority Work Areas
•	 The	Pool’s	operations	comply	with	all	
relevant	health	and	safety	legislation,	with	
improvement	areas	identified	and	resolved.

•	 Pool	users	feel	safe	and	supported	in	the	
Pool	leading	to	continued	usage.

•	 A	highly	skilled	workforce	is	in	place	to	
provide	an	effective	service	to	Pool	users.

•	 Improve	health	and	safety	policies	and	procedures	at	the	Pool	in	line	with	the	
recommendations	of	the	full	health	and	safety	inspection	undertaken	in	March	2014.

•	 Ensure	all	staff	receive	on-going	high	quality	training	to	ensure	the	quality	of	service	
is	maintained	and	developed,	leading	to	the	Pool	being	regarded	as	a	centre	of	
excellence	in	hydrotherapy	services.

•	 Delivery	of	a	programme	of	support	and	training	to	carers	and	helpers	relating	to	
emergency	actions	and	evacuations,	specifically	usage	of	the	pool	hoist	in	such	
situations.

•	 Work	with	representatives	from	South	Lakeland	Hydrotherapy	Trust	and	Cumbria	
County	Council	to	further	improve	the	pool	building	through	on-going	improvements.

Ambition 3: The profile of the Pool and its services is raised both internally within Cumbria County Council 
and in the wider community
Outcomes Priority Work Areas
•	 Key	Officers	and	Members	within	Cumbria	
County	Council	are	more	aware	of	the	
benefits	of	the	services	provided	at	the	Pool	
and	the	contribution	these	make	to	delivering	
community	outcomes.

•	 Key	stakeholders	are	more	aware	of	the	
benefits	of	the	services	provided	at	the	Pool,	
and	the	contribution	these	make	to	delivering	
community	outcomes.

•	 The	local	population	are	more	aware	of	the	
benefits	of	the	services	provided	at	the	Pool,	
and	how	these	can	be	accessed.

•	 Continue	to	work	with	relevant	Officers	in	Cumbria	County	Council	to	develop	
a	marketing	and	communications	plan	for	the	Pool,	and	ensure	this	is	delivered	
effectively.

•	 Work	with	representatives	from	South	Lakeland	Hydrotherapy	Trust,	Cumbria	County	
Council	and	University	Hospitals	Morecambe	Bay	Partnership	Trust	to	continue	
to	lobby	for	continued	investment	in	the	Pool	from	key	stakeholders,	leading	to	a	
commissioned	service.

•	 Continue	to	engage	with	GP’s	to	promote	the	value	of	the	services	provided	at	the	
Pool	and	to	increase	the	number	of	referrals.

Ambition 4: A philosophy of partnership working is maintained and developed in the operation of the Pool
Outcomes Priority Work Areas
•	 An	effective	partnership	between	Cumbria	
County	Council	and	the	South	Lakeland	
Hydrotherapy	Trust	leading	to	improved	
service	delivery	has	been	maintained.

•	 Continue	to	engage	with	representatives	of	South	Lakeland	Hydrotherapy	Trust	in	all	
aspects	of	the	operation	of	the	Pool.

http://sandgatehydrotherapypool.org/
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Report on the Benefits Provided through Hydrotherapy Services at Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool 
 
1. Background 
 
Sandgate Hydrotherapy Pool was built in 1977 through donations received through public 
subscription. The fundraising was led by members of Westmorland Mencap, who have continued 
their support for the Pool ever since, more latterly through the Trustees of South Lakeland 
Hydrotherapy Trust. 
 
During the intervening years the Pool has been operated by Cumbria County Council. The Pool now 
resides within the People Directorate, with budgetary responsibility resting with the South Lakeland 
Local Committee. 
 
Due to the unique nature of the services provided at the Pool, it has been possible, over many years 
to secure partnership funding arrangements with a number of key stakeholders, these being 
Cumbria Clinical Commissioning Group and their newly emerging structures, South Lakeland District 
Council, and Kendal Town Council. Further additional fundraising has been co-ordinated on an on-
going basis by the South Lakeland Hydrotherapy Trust, which has led to significant improvements 
being made to the Pool building, and an increase in the level of service provided to Pool users. 
 
The Pool offers a unique service to the population of south Cumbria and north Lancashire, the 
benefits of hydrotherapy have been well known for many years. The Pool offers these benefits to 
swimmers and non-swimmers alike in a supportive, non-competitive environment that affords 
privacy. Key benefits for Pool users include the ability to: - 
 
• Move more easily 
• Relax your body 
• Regain fitness following an operation or accident 
• Ease pain 
• Perform gentle all body, non-weight bearing exercises  
• Improve circulation and breathing 
• Build self confidence 
 
All of which contribute to the following key health and wellbeing outcomes: - 
 
• Maintenance of individual health and wellbeing 
• Reducing re-presenting occurrences at GP surgeries and physiotherapy departments 
• Quicker rehabilitation following surgery or trauma to allow for early return to work 
• On-going pain relief for chronic conditions 
• Increased opportunities for a return to independent living following periods of hospitalisation 
• Increased social interactions improving mental health and rates of on-going compliance  
 
The Pool has a number of key objectives which include: - 
 
• To provide therapy at an affordable cost  
• To provide a Pool heated to 94˚F (10˚F higher than a public swimming pool) 
• To provide personal/specialist session 
• To facilitate confidence building and emotional support 
• To provide an environment for social interaction 
• To maintain and improve the Pool facilities 
• To provide an accessible and supported environment for the disabled and their families 



 
2. Need for the Report 
 
The need to demonstrate the impact the services provided at the Pool have on the lives of clients 
has for some time been required. This is especially true in the current climate of financial austerity, 
when the long term funders of the Pool mentioned earlier, are reviewing their investments carefully, 
and where structures, particularly in the area of health services are changing at a rapid rate.  
 
Each year, an Annual Report is produced, which looks at successes and achievements from the 
previous year, and highlights a number of case studies, which demonstrate the importance of the 
services provided at the pool, and the difference it is having on the lives of Pool clients. Whilst these 
case studies provide a great insight into the difference the Pool makes to a small number of 
individuals, it is felt that they do not demonstrate the broader impact the service has on the lives of 
the 500 or so clients using the Pool at any one time.  
 
To develop this, it was agreed that a more in depth survey of pool users was required, seeking the 
views of Pool users as to their feelings of general wellbeing and levels of activity as a result of regular 
usage of the Pool. Given the limited capacity available at the Pool, a simple system has been 
adopted using the recognised Measure Yourself Medical Outcome Profile (MYMOP) approach. An 
initial mass survey was undertaken back in 2016, which captured some extremely positive results 
and the Pool now survey new clients on an on-going basis to demonstrate the impact of the services 
provided to these clients. 
 
3. The MYMOP Approach 
 
MYMOP is a patient-generated, or individualised, outcome questionnaire. It is problem-specific but 
includes general wellbeing. It is applicable to all patients who present with symptoms, and these can 
be physical, emotional or social. It is brief and simple to administer. 
 
On the first occasion the questionnaire is completed within the consultation, or with some 
confidential help. The patient chooses one or two symptoms that they are seeking help with, and 
that they consider to be the most important. They also choose an activity of daily living that is 
limited or prevented by this problem. These choices are written down in the patient’s own words 
and the patient scores them for severity over the past week on a seven-point scale. Lastly wellbeing 
is scored on a similar scale. On follow-up questionnaires the wording of the previously chosen items 
is unchanged. 
 
Several published studies have shown that MYMOP is practical, reliable and sensitive to change. 
These studies have involved patients who have received treatment from both orthodox and 
complementary practitioners for a range of problems. 
 
Copies of the MYMOP Forms used in this study are detailed as Appendix A. 
 
4. Methodology of the Study 
 
The study is undertaken during a 12 week period, and involves surveying new pool users from a 
cross-section of groups, these being casual sessions, Arthritis Care Group, Parkinson’s Disease 
Group, and the Multiple Sclerosis Society. The survey is added to constantly throughout the year 
which builds the picture over a period of time. 
 



Given the random approach taken to the survey, the individual diagnoses are not specified. We have 
simply used the 12 week period to generate a snapshot for each individual user at that moment in 
time. 
 
The focus of the study was to look at four main questions, these being: - 
 
As a result of using the services provided at the Pool during the period: - 
 
• Has the severity of primary symptoms improved? 
• Has the severity of secondary symptoms improved? 
• Has the ability to perform an identified activity improved? 
• Has the feeling of general wellbeing improved? 
 
This approach will be continued moving forward, focussing on new pool users, as well as doing some 
specific studies for individual user groups with similar diagnoses, such as Multiple Sclerosis or 
Parkinson’s disease. 
 
5. Findings of the Study 
 
The findings of the study are summarised below in table form, and have been aggregated as a 
whole, and then grouped by the severity of the primary symptom. 
 
Table 1 looks at clients reporting to have the highest rate of severity of symptom 1, these are scored 
at either 5 or 6 on the MYMOP scale.  
 
(Table 1) 
 Symptom 1 Symptom 2 Activity General 

Wellbeing 
 Surve

y 1 
Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Number of Individuals 30 30 27 27 30 30 30 30 
Average Severity Score 5.5 3.3 4.6 3.3 5.0 2.7 4.5 2.7 
 
The table indicates that as a result of regular hydrotherapy pool usage, the surveyed clients 
reported: - 
 
• For the severity of symptom 1, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 2.2 points 

improvement and the range was from -1 points deterioration to 5 points improvement. 
• For the severity of symptom 2, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 1.3 points 

improvement and the range was from -1 points deterioration to 4 points improvement. 
• For the ability to perform an identified activity, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 

2.3 points improvement and the range was from -2 points deterioration to 6 points 
improvement. 

• For the reported general wellbeing, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 1.8 points 
improvement and the range was from -1 points deterioration to 6 points improvement. 

 
Table 2 looks at clients reporting to have a moderate rate of severity of symptom 1, these are scored 
at either 3 or 4 on the MYMOP scale.  
 
(Table 2) 
 Symptom 1 Symptom 2 Activity General 



Wellbeing 
 Surve

y 1 
Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Number of Individuals 46 46 32 32 46 46 46 46 
Average Severity Score 3.5 2.8 3.4 2.8 3.8 2.8 3.0 2.1 
 
The table indicates that as a result of regular hydrotherapy pool usage, the surveyed clients 
reported: - 
 
• For the severity of symptom 1, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 0.7 points 

improvement and the range was from -2 points deterioration to 3 points improvement. 
• For the severity of symptom 2, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 0.6 points 

improvement and the range was from -3 points deterioration to 2 points improvement. 
• For the ability to perform an identified activity, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 

1.0 points improvement and the range was from -2 points deterioration to 3 points 
improvement. 

• For the reported general wellbeing, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 0.9 points 
improvement and the range was from -1 points deterioration to 6 points improvement. 

 
Table 3 aggregates all clients involved in the survey.  
 
(Table 3) 
 Symptom 1 Symptom 2 Activity General 

Wellbeing 
 Surve

y 1 
Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Surve
y 1 

Surve
y 2 

Number of Individuals 84 84 70 70 84 84 84 84 
Average Severity Score 4.1 3.0 3.8 3.0 4.1 2.7 3.5 2.3 
 
The table indicates that as a result of regular hydrotherapy pool usage, the surveyed clients 
reported: - 
 
• For the severity of symptom 1, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 1.1 points 

improvement and the range was from -2 points deterioration to 4 points improvement. 
• For the severity of symptom 2, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 0.8 points 

improvement and the range was from -3 points deterioration to 4 points improvement. 
• For the ability to perform an identified activity, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 

1.4 points improvement and the range was from -2 points deterioration to 6 points 
improvement. 

• For the reported general wellbeing, the average change in MYMOP profile score was 1.2 points 
improvement and the range was from -1 points deterioration to 6 points improvement. 

 
6. Annual Referrals 
 
As mentioned previously, the Pool caters for around 500 clients each week, all of whom are referred 
into the service, some of which are long term users of the pool, to maintain or keep at bay an on-
going disability or condition, whilst many clients use the pool for a much shorter period of time, to 
aid improvement in a condition through either gentle therapeutic exercise, or a more tailored 
package of support.  
 



To support this report, a further analysis of the referrals received over the previous 12 month period 
has been undertaken, and the source of the referral identified. This information, when looked at in 
conjunction with the financial contribution made by the Clinical Commissioning Group under the 
current funding arrangements is also explored in more detail below. 
 
Table 2 provides details of the source of the referrals into the Pool during the last 12 month period.  
 (Table 2) 
Referral Source Number 
Westmorland Hospital Physiotherapy Department 62 
Captain French Practice Kendal 43 
Station House Practice Kendal 37 
James Cochrane Practice Kendal 56 
Windermere Surgery 6 
Ambleside / Hawkshead Practice 2 
Sedbergh Practice 4 
Park View Milnthorpe Practice 2 
Stoneleigh Milnthorpe Practice 6 
Grange over Sands Surgery 7 
Cartmel Surgery 1 
Ash Trees Carnforth Practice 2 
Bentham Practice 2 
Coastal Medical Practice, Morecambe 1 
Other NHS Departments (non-Physio) 15 
Total 246 
 
7. Summary 
 
The evaluation of the perceived benefits of the service provided at the Pool using the MYMOP 
surveys would seem to make a compelling case to ensure that this valuable service is continued.  
 
Clearly, the MYMOP results reported proved the service was extremely beneficial in not only 
improving the primary and secondary symptoms, but also of increasing levels of activity, and 
promoted higher levels of general wellbeing. 
 
Given the change in focus of funding bodies such as Clinical Commissioning Groups towards a more 
preventative role, and of keeping individuals living independently in their own homes, in improving 
social cohesion, reducing isolation, and improving mental wellbeing, the results demonstrated in this 
report would support a continued investment in the services at the Pool. 
 
Looking at value for money, a simple calculation using the number of annual referrals made to the 
pool from primary care establishments (246) versus the current annual financial contribution of the 
CCG (£15k) would indicate a very modest cost per head of £60.98.  
 
It is also worth noting the total annual operating costs of the pool equates to some £120K. Given 
that the pool caters for around 500 individuals each year, the cost per head of pool user per year is 
around £240. 
 



Taking this point further, the true cost of the 246 new referrals during the last year is in the region of 
£59,040 (246 x £240). Clearly the funding received currently through the CCG is only around 25% of 
the actual costs of these referrals. 
 
Although a relatively small amount of funding, the impact of the CCG not funding the Pool would 
present considerable challenges to both individuals from south Cumbria and north Lancashire in 
continuing to maintain their own health and wellbeing through accessing services at the pool, but 
also to the operators of the pool who value the partnership funding previously provided to help 
balance the books of this important preventative service.  
 
 
 



 
General Grants 2019/20 

1 

 

KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 2019/20 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? 

Have you read the grants criteria? 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? 
 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: Fairoak Housing Association 
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Kate Forshaw Housing and Support Officer 
 

 

Daytime Telephone: 01539 720082             E-mail: kate.forshaw@fairoakhousing.co.uk 

 

Address: 155 Highgate, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4EN 

1. Please tell us about your organisation:  
Fairoak Housing provide high quality, safe, affordable and suitably adapted housing for our 
tenants; many of whom are vulnerable or have learning, mental health or physical disability. 
Fairoak offer a range of living styles and options including supported living, shared houses, 
adult care homes and shared ownership.In addition to providing accommodation we are also 
able to advise our tenants on how to obtain the support necessary to live independently. 

 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for:  
Welfare cuts and pressure on local authority budgets has meant that many of our tenants, who 
live on their own, are finding that their support packages are being reduced and this is leading to 
increased levels of social isolation and mental health issues. At Fairoak, we are very keen to try 
and fill this gap for our tenants and have set up a new project called Friends of Fairoak. The 
project has been trying to recruit volunteers but this has proved very difficult so we are now trying 
to arrange one off events such as a trip to see a musical, bowling, and cinema. We have been 
able to provide two trips to visit the Calvert Trust in Keswick who provide short breaks for adults 
with disabilities over the last two years. These trips have been very popular and the tenanst have 
hadf a wonderfull time and have discovered and intetests in new activities and have pushed 
themselves to take part in the challenging activities. We have a collaboration with The Brewery 
Arts Centre in Cendal to provide art and dance sessions each week for our tenants which is 
working very well. We will continue to look for volunteers as well and hope to advertise at as 
many events as possible. 
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
As a small not for profit Registered Social Landlord, the income that we receive is from rents and 
this is used to cover our operating costs, invest in maintaining and improving our housing stock 
and developing new schemes for vulnerable adults. Friends of Fairoak is a project aimed at 
assisting those who live on their own and experience social isolation, loneliness and the negative 
effects on their physical and emotional wellbeing that this creates. Around 25-30 tenants with 
learning disabilities living in Kendal are receiving the benefits this service provides and we have 
been raising funds outside of our normal operating activities to develop and fund this project. 
 
It is difficult to put a cost on this service because the more we have the more we can provide and 
to more of our tenants. Each event will incur different costs including, transport, administration, 
stationary, insurance, DBS checks, reimbursing volunteers, ticket costs, accommodation, 
training, and supervision. If we could raise enough money to pay for a regular person to provide 
regular support that would make a massive difference but would also cost a substantial amount 
of money.  
 
If these projects are successful, our ambition is to open it up to other people with learning 
disabilities living in the Kendal area. If a new project trial goes well in collaboration with the 
Brewery Arts Centre in Kendal then this will become a reality. 
 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
As many of our tenants have had their support reduced or withdrawn completely, we are 
determined to help fill the gap this has been left and reduce the negative impact on their health 
and wellbeing. We already hold regular social events and activities and can see the positive 
effect this has on our tenant’s lives. We have started a gardening group and successfully won at 
Kendal in Bloom twice we hope to be able to enter again next year. We have started a dance 
and art workshop in conjunction with the Brewery Arts Centre and a number of our tenants have 
now taken part in two of the Dance Platform shows.  
We are a very small team of four and are limited as to the amount of activities we can provide on 
our own.  
 
The structure of the organisation consists of; 

• A board of eight voluntary trustees 
• Housing Director – Full time 
• Housing and Support officer – Full time 
• Housing and Support officer- 30 hours per week 
• Finance Officer – 22.5 hours per week  

 

Total cost of project or service £5,000+      Amount requested £ 500 

Funds received to date    £503.03        from our own fundriasing     Funds pledged to date: 0 
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
 
Small item sale of unwanted gifts 
 

£47.00 

  
 
Cheese and wine fundraising evening planned for 2nd November 2018 £ 

Charity Fashion show July 2018 
 £458.03 

 
  

Total Funds Raised £505.03 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? How do you 
propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
 
The success of the project will be determined by an increase in the number of opportunities and 
activities that our tenants are able to access in the local community. The aim is to reduce the 
effects of social isolation and to have a positive impact on health and wellbeing. This will be 
measured by a reduction in the number of non-essential contacts with GP’s and other statutory 
agencies and evidence of improved physical and emotional health. 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:  K Forshaw       Date: 3/8/2018 
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
 
Organisation’s Account Name Svenska Handelsbanken 
 
Sort Code: 40-51-62  Account Number: 20269001 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. Please provide a 
copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 
Please note £1,261,906 financial reserve includes fixed assets. The surplus amount is 
£237,674 
 

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 2019/20 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? - Yes 

Have you read the grants criteria? - Yes 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? – Yes for 2016 see explanation at end 

 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: Growing Well 
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Fiona Moncur, Fundraising Co-ordinator (Grants & Trusts) 
 

 

Daytime Telephone: 015395 61777   E-mail: fiona@growingwell.co.uk 

 

Address: Low Sizergh Farm,  
     Low Sizergh, 
     Kendal, LA8 8AE 
 

1. Please tell us about your organisation: Established in 2004, we are an independent mental health 
charity supporting individuals in their recovery from illness.  Located on a 6-acre farm on the edge of 
Kendal, we grow up to 15 tonnes of organic vegetables, salad & soft fruits each year, distributed through a 
regular vegetable bag (Crop Share) or sold to specialist commercial partners.  Clients (volunteers) commit 
to attend the project weekly, ideally for at least 3 months and get involved in all aspects of our work.  Most 
volunteers work in the field, we also have volunteers in our catering team, office and on our Board of 
Trustees. We support up to 20 people daily, operating an open referral process Mon–Thurs.  We provide 
structure and tailored support to enable people to recover, helping them to re-connect and preparing them 
for a return to work or further training/volunteering.  We are an accredited training provider and offer Levels 
1 & 2 in Horticulture as well as amenity growing courses to people in the local community.  We host 
primary school visits during term time, teaching children the principles of farm to fork. Growing Well 
successfully models social prescribing and therapeutic gardening as an effective alternative to medical 
prescribing in terms of cost and outcomes. Over the course of 13 years we have become experts in 
supporting mental health recovery through the therapeutic activity of crop growing, achieved some 
inspirational results along the way and supported over 550 local people. 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for:   For a number of years our turnover 
has been in the region of £300,000 per year.  Mostly we have been able to cover our costs, either making 
a small surplus - £12,301 in 2015, or a manageable deficit - £9,142 in 2016.  In keeping with many 
charities, we are finding it increasingly difficult to generate sufficient income to continue to meet an 
growing demand for our service.  In 2016 we supported 76 individuals, last year this increased to 126.   
We have a small, dedicated, mostly part-time team of 7 FTE, we are not extravagant with expenditure, 
87% is attributable to direct costs (salaries, growing media and volunteer expenses) ensuring we keep our 
back-office costs to a minimum.  Despite this and whilst the picture is a fluid one, in 2018 we are 
forecasting a significant deficit - £23,746 (before depreciation), and whilst we are keeping our fingers 
crossed for a successful application to the Big Lottery Reaching Communities, we are still anticipating 
having to draw on some of our Reserves to cover the deficit. 
We are therefore applying to KTC for funding that may be put towards our Core costs and help reduce our 
forecast deficit. 
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
 
We believe that having Growing Well available as a free service to people living in the local community 
and beyond every Monday – Thursday is vital and essential for people living in and around Kendal.  This is 
borne out year on year by the increasing number of referrals we receive, the number of people we support 
and the outcomes achieved by our beneficiaries.   
 
Our approach is unique, we offer individuals experiencing a wide range of mental health conditions a safe 
space to get well by immersing themselves in meaningful physical activity, having the opportunity to learn 
new skills, gain qualifications, make friends and receive tailored 1:1 mental health support all of which has 
a major impact in people’s lives.  The benefits of our work are clearly quantifiable both in economic terms 
and to the individual; in 2016, 11 volunteers returned to work creating £140,789 in economic benefit and 3 
people went on to enrol for further training.   
 
In 2017, using our own research, we identified that returning to work was the main objective for the 
majority of people who come to us for help.  To this end we were granted 3-years funding by Henry Smith 
Charity to appoint an Occupational Therapist, part of whose role has been to write and deliver a Return to 
Work programme.   To date the programme has been delivered 3 times to 20 individuals with every 
participant achieving at least one of their goals, whether that be a return to work, actively seeking work, 
going into further education or engaging in further unsupported volunteering. 
 
As well as helping individuals with their mental health, we also provide opportunities to improve physical 
health (over 20 volunteers participated in Run Every Day January, Cross Bay Walk and Lakeland Trails 
event) and offer free accredited training in Horticulture, tractor driving and food safety, providing individuals 
with qualifications that help build confidence and enhance employability.  We also offer a free, freshly 
cooked vegetarian meal every day, giving volunteers the opportunity to improve their diet and nutritional 
intake.  
 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application.  
 
We are acutely aware of the need to become less reliant on grant funding for the reasons stated above.  
As well as continuing to grow salads for distribution through our crop share customers, over the past 18 
months we have been working on physical improvements to our site to allow us to develop commercial 
activities which still align with our aims and objectives.  
  
In early 2018, using funding from Fresh Ideas, we built an additional polytunnel which has allowed us to 
increase the volume of salad grown for commercial sale to existing partner organisations and develop new 
relationships.  Additionally, we are currently in the process of building a dedicated catering facility using 
funding from a range of funders.  Once complete, as well as enhancing the experience for volunteers in 
the catering team who help to prepare the lunch time meal for the daily workforce, the new kitchen will also 
allow us to begin food and drink production on a cottage industry scale making chutneys, jellies, sauces 
and cordial drinks for sale at pop up events, farmers markets, Christmas hampers, etc.   
 
In time we also anticipate being able to use our new catering space to offer niche catering courses to 
people living in the local community and it may also create an opportunity to offer accredited courses in 
food and hospitality which will help our beneficiaries gain qualifications and the necessary experience to 
facilitate a to return to work.  

Total cost of service        £260,271 (before dep)   Amount requested £3,500 

Funds received to date  £107,486      Funds pledged to date £120,628 
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
 
Tudor Trust £20,000 

 
Henry Smith Charity £26,500 

 
CCG Therapeutic Community (ended June 2108) £22,607 

 
BIG Lottery Reaching Communities (ended Feb 2018) 
 

£21,909 

Miscellaneous funders/sales of salad and crop shares/social care contract 
 £137,098 

Total Funds Raised £228,114 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success?  
We employ a range of approaches to measure our impact, and publish the reports on our website,  
https://www.growingwell.co.uk/referrers/impact-measurement/.   Additionally we do the following:  

• Measure individual volunteer recovery and progression against set goals and targets using the 
Recovery Star 10-point scale to measure incremental achievements; 

• Work with an independent consultancy Symbiont to evaluate our performance and the difference 
we make to the lives of our volunteers;  

• Conduct an annual Volunteer Survey; 
• Record outcomes from the Return to Work programme. 

 
 
 
 

 

Signed:  Fiona Moncur   Date: 9th August 2018 
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
     Growing Well Ltd 
Organisation’s Account Name…………………………………………………………………… 
                      08 92 99      65121940 00 
Sort Code:..……………………………  Account Number: ………………..………………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application.  
We are in the process of changing our legal charitable status from Industrial & Provident Society to 
Registered Charity and anticipate the process being complete by October 2018.  Consequently, we extended 
our 2017/18 financial year to 30.06.18 and our accounts are currently with the auditors being prepared.  I 
have attached 2016 audited accounts. 

https://www.growingwell.co.uk/referrers/impact-measurement/
mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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GROWING WELL LTD

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016



We report on the accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016 set out on the following pages.

Respective responsibilities of officers and the reporting accountants

The society's officers are responsible for the preparation of the accounts, and they consider that the society
is entitled to opt out of an audit. It is our responsibility to carry out procedures designed to enable us to
report our opinion.

Basis of opinion

Our work was conducted in accordance with the Statement of Standards for Reporting Accountants, and so 
our procedures consisted of comparing accounts with the accounting records kept by the society, and making
such limited enquiries of the officers of the society as we considered necessary for the purposes of this report. 
These procedures provide the only assurance expressed in our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion:

a) the accounts are in agreement with the accounting records kept by the society under s75 of the Co-operative
and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 ("the 2014 Act");

b) having regard only to, and on the basis of, the information contained in those acccounting records the
accounts have been drawn up in a manner consistent with the 2014 Act;

c) the society satisfied the conditions for exemption from an audit of the accounts for the period specified in 
s84(1) of the 2014 Act and did not, at any time within in that year, fall within any of the categories of societies
not entitled to the exemption specified in s84(3) of the 2014 Act.

SAINT & CO
The Old Police Station Chartered Accountants
Church Street & Registered Auditors (ICAEW)
Ambleside
Cumbria
LA22 0BT

……………………………. Date
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YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

GROWING WELL LTD

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF GROWING WELL LIMITED



Notes
£ £ £ £

INCOME
Growing income 29,272 32,939
Training and education income 27,668 43,827
Core Wellbeing income 176,073 159,317
Therapeutic Community income 88,053 89,825
Projects' income:

Social Impact 24,975 -
Local Sustainability 8,112 -

Bank interest received 456 471

Total Income 7 354,609 326,379

EXPENDITURE
Direct costs

Growing costs 14,122 13,146
Training and education costs 2,927 5,628
Core Wellbeing costs 18,435 9,813
Therapeutic Community costs 28,167 24,569
Projects' costs:

Social Impact 18,720 -
Local Sustainability 5,112 -

87,483 53,156
Overheads

Staff costs 6 209,184 177,110
Lease rental 7,195 7,500
Insurance 4,218 3,438
Heat power water and security 535 3,544
Staff & directors' expenses 4,201 4,161
Staff & directors' training costs 1,468 2,737
Promotion 6,239 6,696
Communications and stationery 8,365 8,962
Professional fees 2,128 4,685
Independent accountants fees 2,244 2,184
Repairs and renewals 4,924 3,578
General expenses 2,923 2,592

253,624 227,187

341,107 280,343
Depreciation

Plant and machinery 20,564 25,486
Office equipment 1,113 3,076
Site furniture and fittings 779 4,279
Motor vehicles 188 250

Deficit on disposals - 644
22,644 33,735

Total Expenditure 363,751 314,078

(DEFICIT) / SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR (9,142) 12,301

All the activities of the society are from continuing operations.
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The notes on pages 4 to 8 form part of these financial statements

Year ended Year ended
31.12.15



Notes
£ £ £ £

FIXED ASSETS
Tangible fixed assets 2 30,362 47,715

CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 3 8,865 13,826
Bank 232,099 169,139
Petty cash 997 944

241,961 183,909

LIABILITIES: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR
Trade creditors 5,421 5,238
Deferred grants 8 86,507 37,135
PAYE & NI 3,056 2,700
Pension contributions 452 1,308
Other creditors & accruals 7,922 7,129

103,358 53,510

NET CURRENT ASSETS 138,603 130,399

NET ASSETS 168,965 178,114

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital - £1 shares issued and paid 40 47

Reserves
Grant funds 8 16,777 14,087
Fixed assets reserve 9 30,362 47,715
General reserve 10 121,786 116,265

168,925 178,067

168,965 178,114

These financial statements were approved by the committee members of the society on ……………………….
and are signed on their behalf by:

………………………………………………. Samantha Carey (Chair)

………………………………………………. Fiona Weir (Treasurer)

………………………………………………. Claire Louise Chapman (Secretary)

BALANCE SHEET

GROWING WELL LTD

31.12.15
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the
provisions of FRS102 Section 1A, "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland".

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the entity.

Transition to FRS102
The entity transitioned from previous UK GAAP to FRS102 as at 1 January 2015. No transitional adjustments were required
in equity or net income for the year.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts reported. These estimates and judgements are continually reviewed and are based on experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The only estimate that is made that could have a material effect on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities is 
depreciation on fixed assets. The depreciation policy is set out below and the carrying amounts are set out in the tangible 
fixed assets note to the accounts.

Tangible fixed assets
These are included at cost and subsequently stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Items under £ 500 are not capitalised and are written off to expenditure in the Revenue Account when the assets are acquired.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value, over
the useful economic life of that asset as follows:

Leasehold land and property - straight line over the remaining term of the lease in force 
at the time the expenditure is incurred

Plant and machinery
Temporary structures - 20% straight line
Agricultural plant & machinery - 25% reducing balance
Bicycles - 25% straight line

Office equipment - 331/3% straight line
Site furniture and fittings - 331/3% straight line
Motor Vehicles - 25% reducing balance

Income and expenditure
Items of income and expenditure are accounted for using the accruals basis.

Grants
These are recognised when the society is legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified
with reasonable accuracy. 

Operating lease agreements
Rentals are charged to the revenue account on a straight line basis.

Pension costs
The society operates a defined contributions pension scheme and the pension charge represents the
society's contribution payable to the fund in respect of the period.
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2. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Short

leasehold Site
land and Office furniture Motor
property equipment & fittings vehicles

£ £ £ £
Cost
As at 1 January 2016 54,680 23,610 20,374 1,000
Additions - 1,400 1,472 -
Disposals - - (61) -
As at 31 December 2016 54,680 25,010 21,785 1,000

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2016 54,680 22,505 19,798 250
Charge for the year - 1,113 779 188
Eliminated on disposals - - (61) -
As at 31 December 2016 54,680 23,618 20,516 438

Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2016 - 1,392 1,269 562

As at 31 December 2015 - 1,105 576 750

Total
Agricultural Total tangible

Temporary plant & plant & fixed 
structures machinery Bicycles machinery assets

£ £ £
Cost
As at 1 January 2016 126,850 60,692 1,751 189,293 288,957
Additions - 1,420 999 2,419 5,291
Disposals - - - - (61)
As at 31 December 2016 126,850 62,112 2,750 191,712 294,187

Depreciation
As at 1 January 2016 92,809 50,284 916 144,009 241,242
Charge for the year 17,126 2,959 479 20,564 22,644
Eliminated on disposals - - - - (61)
As at 31 December 2016 109,935 53,243 1,395 164,573 263,825

Net Book Value
As at 31 December 2016 16,915 8,869 1,355 27,139 30,362

As at 31 December 2015 34,041 10,408 835 45,284 47,715

GROWING WELL LTD

Page 5
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3. DEBTORS 31.12.16 31.12.15
£ £

Trade debtors 1,305 2,827
Other Debtors 7,560 10,999

8,865 13,826

4. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

Amounts falling due less than 1 year 2 to 5 years less than 1 year 2 to 5 years
£ £ £ £

Rent land and property 7,140 12,495 7,140 19,635

The lease was renewed for 5 years, backdated to 1 October 2014, due to expire on 30 September 2019. 
From February 2016 the annual amount was decreased from £7,800 to £7,140 to reflect a reduction in office space.

5. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The society made no payments to committee members for services provided during the year. 

Travel and subsistence expenses amounting to £ 8 were claimed by committee members during the year (2015: £ 58)

 
6. STAFF COSTS 31.12.16 31.12.15

£ £

Gross salaries 185,629 156,609
Employer's national insurance 9,874 9,373
Employer's pension contributions 13,681 11,128

209,184 177,110

The average number of persons employed by the society during the year amounted to 15 (2015: 14).

7. INCOME
The income per the Revenue Account may be analysed as follows:

Grants Other Total
see Note 8 31.12.16

£ £ £
Growing income - 29,272 29,272
Training and education income - 27,668 27,668
Core Wellbeing income 158,239 17,834 176,073
Therapeutic Community income 88,053 - 88,053
Projects' income:

Social Impact 24,975 - 24,975
Local Sustainability 8,112 - 8,112

Bank interest received - 456 456

279,379 75,230 354,609

31.12.16 31.12.15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
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8. GRANT FUNDS Brought Carried
forward Income Expenditure forward

£ £ £ £
Training and education

None year ended 31 December 2016 - - - -
- - - -

Core Wellbeing
Awards for All 1,500 - (1,500) -
Big Lottery - Reaching Communities - 83,989 (83,989) -
Cumberland Building Society - 100 (100) -
Cumbria Community Foundation - 500 (500) -
Cumbria County Council - 5,000 - 5,000
Cumbria Gardens Trust - 500 (500) -
Frieda Scott Charitable Trust - 2,090 (2,090) -
Furness Building Society - 150 (150) -
Growing Well CIO see footnote - 5,010 (2,400) 2,610
Harold and Alice Bridges Charity - 1,000 (1,000) -
Lupton Tower Trust - 1,000 (1,000) -
Mary Kinross Trust - 15,000 (15,000) -
Moto in the Community Trust - 1,000 (1,000) -
Santander Foundation 2,394 - (942) 1,452
School for Social Entrepreneurs (SSE) 5,193 9,000 (14,193) -
Sir John Fisher Foundation - 6,625 (3,325) 3,300
South Lakeland District Council 5,000 - (5,000) -
The February Foundation - 5,000 (585) 4,415
The ESH Foundation - 900 (900) -
The John Gilpin Trust - 2,500 (2,500) -
The Nineveh Charitable Trust - 5,000 (5,000) -
The Van Neste Foundation - 9,375 (9,375) -
Unity - 4,500 (4,500) -

14,087 158,239 (155,549) 16,777
Therapeutic Community 
NHS Cumbria - 88,053 (88,053) -

- 88,053 (88,053) -
Social Impact project
Social Investment Business - Impact Readiness Fund - 24,975 (24,975) -

- 24,975 (24,975) -
Local Sustainability project
Big Lottery - Local Sustainability Fund - 8,112 (8,112) -

- 8,112 (8,112) -

Total 14,087 279,379 (276,689) 16,777

Amounts received by Growing Well CIO and passed on to Growing Well Ltd:
Brought Carried
forward Income Expenditure forward

£ £ £ £
The D'Oyly Carte Charitable Trust - 3,000 (2,000) 1,000
Skipton Building Society - 2,010 (400) 1,610

- 5,010 (2,400) 2,610

Expenditure is in respect of tangible fixed assets and items charged to the Revenue Account.

Income excludes grants of £ 86,507 received in the year ended 31 December 2016, deferred to activities to be carried
out in 2017, being: Big Lottery Local Sustainability Fund £ 48,418, Big Lottery Reaching Communities £ 7,014,
Frieda Scott Charitable Trust £ 10,450, Mary Kinross Charitable Trust £ 15,000 and The Van Neste Foundation £ 5,625.

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

GROWING WELL LTD
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9. FIXED ASSETS RESERVE

This reflects the net book value of tangible fixed assets.
31.12.16 31.12.15

£ £

Brought forward 47,715 77,461
Transfers from / (to) general reserve (Note 10)

Additions 5,291 3,989
Depreciation charged (22,644) (33,091)
Deficit on disposals - (644)

(17,353) (29,746)
Carried forward 30,362 47,715

10. GENERAL RESERVE 31.12.16 31.12.15
£ £

Surplus brought forward 116,265 88,305

(Deficit) / Surplus for the year (9,142) 12,301

Transfers from / (to) fixed assets reserve (Note 9)
Fixed asset additions (5,291) (3,989)
Depreciation charged 22,644 33,091
Deficit on disposals - 644

17,353 29,746
Transfers from / (to) grant funds (Note 8)

Grant income (279,379) (236,567)
Expenditure from grant funds 276,689 222,480

(2,690) (14,087)

Surplus carried forward 121,786 116,265
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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 2019/20 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? 

Have you read the grants criteria? 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? 
 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: SLEDP South Lakeland Equality & Diversity Partnership 
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Jacquetta Gomes Member of SLEDP 
 

 

Daytime Telephone: SLDC 01539-733333   E-mail: sledp2016@gmail.com 

 

Address: SLEDP 
 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-
and-diversity-partnership/  

1. Please tell us about your organisation: 
 
SLEDP is an Equality and Diversity Partnership. 
 
The Mayor Councillor Guy Tirvengadum is Chair of SLEDP 
James McEvoy is a member of the Partnership representing SLDC as the Equality lead. 
 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-
and-diversity-partnership/  
 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/  
 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for: 
 
Interfaith Week event in November  https://www.interfaithweek.org/ 
 
SLEDP will host an event of a meeting with 2 speakers on interfaith/multifaith faith issues Q & A. 
Kendal residents will be invited. We hope that 30 people will attend. 
 
The three aims of the Week are: 

• Strengthening good inter faith relations at all levels 
• Increasing awareness of the different and distinct faith communities in the UK, in 

particular celebrating and building on the contribution which their members make to their 
neighbourhoods and to wider society 

• Increasing understanding between people of religious and non-religious beliefs 
 

 

mailto:sledp2016@gmail.com
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/
https://www.interfaithweek.org/


 
General Grants 2019/20 

2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
 
Hire of room at Quaker Tapestry £72. 
 
https://www.quaker-tapestry.co.uk/room-hire/  
 
https://www.quaker-tapestry.co.uk/app/uploads/2018/01/Room-Hire-Leaflet-2018-sm.pdf  
 
The only room accessible by wheelchairs is on the Friends Meeting Room on the ground floor. 
 
To pay the travel expenses and refreshments of the speaker/s. 
 
SLEDP has held successful Interfaith Week events which benefited the people of Kendal. 
 
The IFN Interfaith Network of the UK acknowledged Kendal as the smallest town to hold a 
weeklong programme of events in Interfaith Week 2017. This was prestigious for Kendal. 
Kendal was included in the national report Inter Faith Week: Stories from 2017, Inspiration for 
2018 on pages 6,7,16 and 24. 
 
https://www.interfaithweek.org/uploads/Inter_Faith_Week_2017_report21.pdf  
 
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/news/press-release-inter-faith-week-2017-an-inspiring-success  
 
http://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/15671960.Friendship_between_faiths_celebrated
_during_week_of_Kendal_events/  
 

 
 
 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
 
South Lakeland Equality and Diversity Partnership  
 
Terms of Reference  
 
The aims of the South Lakeland Equality and Diversity Partnership (SLEDP) are:  

• Seek to reduce inequality on the grounds of gender, race, disability, age, sexual 
orientation, rurality and religion/ belief  

• Celebrate diversity and reduce discrimination  
• Improve the life chances and opportunities for people who live, work  

and visit South Lakeland  
 
The South Lakeland Equality and Diversity Partnership is composed of interested 
representatives from the private, public and third sectors. All the equality strands will be 
represented on the Steering Group.  
 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-
and-diversity-partnership/  
 

  
 

Total cost of project or service £ 100              Amount requested £ 100 

Funds received to date  £ None        Funds pledged to date £ None 

https://www.quaker-tapestry.co.uk/room-hire/
https://www.quaker-tapestry.co.uk/app/uploads/2018/01/Room-Hire-Leaflet-2018-sm.pdf
https://www.interfaithweek.org/uploads/Inter_Faith_Week_2017_report21.pdf
https://www.interfaith.org.uk/news/press-release-inter-faith-week-2017-an-inspiring-success
http://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/15671960.Friendship_between_faiths_celebrated_during_week_of_Kendal_events/
http://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/15671960.Friendship_between_faiths_celebrated_during_week_of_Kendal_events/
http://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/14914329.Priest__39_s_talk_at_Quaker_Tapestry_celebrates_friendship_between_faiths/
http://www.thewestmorlandgazette.co.uk/news/14914329.Priest__39_s_talk_at_Quaker_Tapestry_celebrates_friendship_between_faiths/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/south-lakeland-equality-and-diversity-partnership/
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/equality-and-diversity/
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
None 
 £ None 

 
 £ 

 
 £ 

 
 £ 

 
 £ 

Total Funds Raised £ 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
 
 
Ask attendees. Discuss at future SLEDP meetings. 
  

 
Signed:  J L Gomes      Date: 2 August 2018 
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you: SLEDP does not have accounts  
 
Organisation’s Account Name…………………………………………………………………… 
 
Sort Code:..……………………………  Account Number: ………………..………………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 
 
SLEDP does not have accounts or any funding. Kendal Town Council has paid expenses directly. 
 

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 2019/20 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? 

Have you read the grants criteria? 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? 
 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation:  North West Air Ambulance Charity 
 
 

Correspondent (and position):  Jeff Massey, Trusts and Grants Fundraiser 
 

 

Daytime Telephone: 07473 096 184    E-mail: jeff.massey@nwaa.net 

 

Address: 
North Mersey Business Centre 
Woodward Road 
Knowsley, L33 7UY 
 

1. Please tell us about your organisation: 
 
North West Air Ambulance is a charity and relies entirely on voluntary donations from supporters, 
nevertheless we respond to around 2000 emergency 999 calls every year. Operating across the 
North West, from Kendal and the Lake District to south Cheshire, our three specialist helicopters 
and four wheel-drive Response Unit can arrive at any destination within ten minutes and are 
never more than eight minutes from a full hospital trauma centre. We do more than a standard 
ambulance, we bring trained paramedics and doctors to the incident scene, alongside medicines 
and vital equipment. It is this quick response and treatment that is so essential in saving lives, 
and no other Air Ambulance covers the same area or works so closely with its mainstream 
emergency services. We help all people who need it, from children to the elderly, in all locations 
from the heart of our communities, to motorways, to the remote sites of the Lake District. 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for: 
 
General running costs.  
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
 
 
Donations and support of all kinds are crucial to our ability to provide this service as we receive 
no government or statutory funding.  The residents of Kendal benefit in emergency medical 
situations whenever time is critical or access is difficult. We can bring emergency medical care, 
medicines and equipment to patients and transport them to a full hospital or trauma centre within 
minutes, vastly improving chances of survival and recovery.  
 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
 
Although it is difficult to breakdown our mission statistics by postcode area, each year 
approximately 22% of our total missions (around 450) take place within Cumbria. With the 
introduction of our four-wheel drive response vehicle this year, we expect that number to 
increase to around 500.  Media sometimes report our landings in Kendal, such as this 
unfortunate recent incident from nearby Tebay: http://www.nwemail.co.uk/news/Woman-dead-
and-man-critical-in-hospital-after-horrific-crashes-on-the-M6-9782741d-4da7-4dd6-ab28-
996b4d18f2ee-ds Additionally, our shop in Kendal is operated and supported by local residents 
many of whom have personal stories of how we have helped them or family members. 
 
You can see our most recently available mission statistics here: https://nwaa.net/our-
story/#mission-tracker 
 

Total cost of project or service     £8,133,052 (16/17)      Amount requested £1000 

Funds received to date       £8,784,495 (16/17)     Funds pledged to date £ N/A 

http://www.nwemail.co.uk/news/Woman-dead-and-man-critical-in-hospital-after-horrific-crashes-on-the-M6-9782741d-4da7-4dd6-ab28-996b4d18f2ee-ds
http://www.nwemail.co.uk/news/Woman-dead-and-man-critical-in-hospital-after-horrific-crashes-on-the-M6-9782741d-4da7-4dd6-ab28-996b4d18f2ee-ds
http://www.nwemail.co.uk/news/Woman-dead-and-man-critical-in-hospital-after-horrific-crashes-on-the-M6-9782741d-4da7-4dd6-ab28-996b4d18f2ee-ds
https://nwaa.net/our-story/#mission-tracker
https://nwaa.net/our-story/#mission-tracker
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
 
 £3,111,276 

 
Income from our shops and lottery £5,577,575 

 
Other £95,644 

 
 £ 

 
 £ 

Total Funds Raised £8,784,495 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
 
Our service is 100% focused upon the welfare of our patients and is only limited by the resources 
available. Restrictions on medical records means that we cannot know the ultimate outcome for 
each patient we help however, our crews know when their intervention has been crucial. In all 
cases patients receive medical care that is more comprehensive and much quicker than would 
otherwise have been possible. 

Signed:                    Date: 8th August 2018 
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
 
Organisation’s Account Name… North West Air Ambulance………………………………………… 
 
Sort Code:.. 08-90-00……………………  Account Number: …65438837..………………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Donations and legacies from supporters  (2016/17 figures) 
 
      
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION AND REPORT AND REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES 

Chairman's Introduction and Report and Review of Activities 

Being involved in the creation of the Charity in 1999, it is an honour to now Chair the Board of the North 
West Air Ambulance. I wish to acknowledge the commitment and dedication of my predecessor, Darryl 
Cooke, who fulfilled this role so effectively and who was a trustee for over four years. During this time, 
significant changes were made to the running ofthe Charity; its vision forthe future, a third helicopter brought 
into service and the maintenance and improvement of our financial viability. 

During the year, the Charity appointed a new Chief Executive through a competitive recruitment process, 
(Heather Arrowsmith) who commenced her duties on 1 s t July 2017. Many thanks and acknowledgement are 
expressed for the steriing work of the previous Chief Executive, Fiona Morris, who undertook the role on an 
interim basis. 

My and the Chief Executive's appointment has also coincided with key senior staffing changes within our 
health care partner organisations. This has provided an opportunity to further strengthen and build on our 
relationships which is essential to optimise the use of our resources and ensures the best possible patient 
outcomes. 

A lot of preparatory work has been undertaken this year in reviewing our services, govemance arrangements 
and trustee membership. The results of these reviews and respective action will not be apparent until next 
year and the future of the Charity is looking extremely exciting. 

In financial terms, we continue to be well supported by the people of the North West of England. Their 
generous donations and legacies have again resulted in the Charity strengthening it's financial position. We 
are extremely grateful to our volunteers and supporters who give so much of their free time to this valuable 
service. 

I wish also to acknowledge the dedication of staff and the time and commitment of fellow trustees and their 
willingness to support future change aimed at improving patient care. 

Yours, 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS 

North West Air Ambulance ("the Charity") is a registered company and is registered with the Charity 
Commission. The Charity was incorporated on 12 April 1999. 

Charity registration number: 

Company registration number: 

Chair of the Trustees: 

Secretary: 

Bankers: 

The Co-Operative Bank plc 
1 Balloon Street 
Manchester 
M60 4EP 

Registered Auditors: 

Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP 
The Lexicon 
Mount Street 
Manchester 
M2 5NT 

Investment Managers: 

Investec 
2 Gresham Street 
London 
EC2V 7QP 

1075641 

03752544 

Allan Jude 

Peter Douglas 

Registered and Principal Office: 

Stanley House 
North Mersey Business Centre 
Woodward Road 
Knowsley 
Merseyside 
L33 7UY 

Chief Executive Officer: 

Heather Arrowsmith 

Trustees: 

Mr A Jude (Chair) 
Mrs K March 
Mr S Meehan 
Mrs D Smith 
Dr R Hall (appointed 14 September 2016) 
Mr S Williams (appointed 10 May 2017) 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

TRUSTEES REPORT 

The Trustees, who are also Directors of the Charity for the purposes of the Companies Act, submit their 
annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017. The Trustees have 
adopted the provisions of the statement of Recommended Practice 2015 (SORP) Accounting and Reporting 
for Charities published in July 2014 in preparing the annual report and financial statements of the Charity. 

The Air Ambulance Charity was set up as a company limited by guarantee in 1999. It is governed by a 
Memorandum and Articles of Association, which have recently been amended in 2017 to update the 
appointment and tenure of trustees, objectives and inclusion of training as a future area where the Charity 
could be involved. 

The Charity is supported by NWAA Promotions, a trading company (primarily shops) and the Friends of the 
North West Air Ambulance Community Interest Company which runs the Charity's lottery. Both companies 
were set up and have the objective of raising funds and/or generating awareness of the Charity and are 
subsidiaries of the Charity. 

PERFORMANCE SUMMARY 

While saving lives and improving patient outcomes is the core purpose of the Charity it is not possible to 
measure the precise impact of the services provided. This is because we (like most if not all other air 
ambulance charities) do not have access to hospital patient records and do not have details of the complete 
episode of care. Consequently, we are unable to assess and review our service provided and the impact on 
patient outcomes. Future plans to resolve this include the introduction of a computerised patient report 
system together with entering into patient data sharing information agreements with hospitals and the 
ambulance service. In addition, as part of the 2017 introduction of Consultants on the air ambulance, specific 
clinical audit review time will be incorporated into revised governance arrangements. 

There is general acceptance however, that following traumatic injury the patient's survival are greatest if they 
receive care within a short period of time. Performance therefore is currently measured in terms of air 
ambulance attendances as the helicopters are based such as to be able to respond anywhere within 10 
minutes of activation. 

Category 2016/17 2015/16 
Total missions 2,058 2,027 

Counties 2016/17 2015/16 
Cumbria 450 396 
Lancashire 733 699 
Gt Manchester 347 355 
Merseyside and Cheshire 512 553 
Other 16 24 
Total 2,058 2,027 

Incident type 2016/17 2015/16 
Road Traffic Collision 746 741 
Sport/Leisure 345 380 
Medical 296 278 
Fall 303 255 
Industrial 44 53 
Other 199 198 
Hospital Transfer 125 122 
Total 2,058 2,027 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

TRUSTEES REPORT 

The Charity had a surplus for the year of £896,954 (2015/16 £965,231). 

Fundraising perfonmance 

Overall income was broadly consistent with last year as was our Fundraising performance. The Lottery 
subsidiary continued to grow and continues to be a key source of funds for the Charity. The Retail subsidiary's 
performance was broadly similar to previous year and provided a high street presence for the Charity. 

Volunteers 

We are fortunate to have so many dedicated and loyal volunteers who assist in our fundraising activities and 
in operating our shops. Their contribution underpins our activities and we are very grateful for their support. 

GOVERNANCE 

Organisation structure 

The Charity and it's subsidiaries (Promotions and Lottery) are governed by the Trustees who are also 
Directors because of their position as Trustees and the status ofthe organisations in being companies. They 
meet at least every 3 months (known as Board meetings) and depending upon issues may also communicate 
and do business via tele and video conferences between official meetings. 

A Finance and General Purpose Committee comprising at least two Trustees and members of the Senior 
Management Team meets quarterly to consider financial matters, risk management, investment 
management, information technology and report to the Trustees accordingly. 

During the year, a new Governance Sub Committee was established by the Trustees to review all aspects 
of governance and specifically clinical and operational aspects of the service using the Association of Air 
Ambulances suggested framework as a guide. The committee have met on a number of occasions and are 
expected to make recommendations to the Board in the new year. 

Trustees are appointed by the Charity, candidates may be put forward for consideration by individual 
Trustees or the Chief Executive, together with a brief CV of their relevant experience. Trustees are unpaid 
and are appointed for a period of up to three years. At the end of their three year term they may be re
appointed. Trustees are subject to retirement by rotation at the Annual General Meeting but may be re
appointed if willing to and agreed by the other Trustees. 

Trustees are selected for their abilities to make an effective contribution to the Charity. The key attributes 
include: 

• Running a business 
• Financial 
• Accident and Emergency Medicine 
• Medical/Clinical experience 
• Logistics 
• Medical Managements or PR 
• Personal Management 
• Charity management 
• Merchandising 
• Access to fundraising sources 
• Being well respected in their field 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

TRUSTEES REPORT 

The target number of Trustees is not fixed but needs to reflect the diverse range of skills needed. During the 
year, the Trustees embarked on recruiting new colleagues and at the time of writing this report, two new 
Trustees have been recruited with specialist skills in legal and clinical. 

Trustees are provided with information from the Charity Commission on the role and responsibilities attached 
to the position. An induction pack for Trustees is currently being reviewed and updated. As part of ongoing 
training Trustees receive charity law updates, strategy sessions and presentations in relation to operational 
and topical charity matters. Trustees are ultimately responsible for the operation of the Charity and its 
subsidiary companies, decisions regarding strategy, annual budget agreement and major purchases are 
reserved for the Board. This is set out in a scheme of delegation where authority for making decisions is 
clearly set out. 

The day-to-day running of the Charity and subsidiaries is undertaken by the Senior Management Team (SMT) 
led by the Chief Executive. The current SMT comprises: 

Chief Executive 
Medical Director 
Head of Finance 
Head of Fundraising 
Head of Promotions 
HR Manager 

The Medical Director is provided by North West Ambulance Service NHS Trust, a key strategic partner, as 
part of a service level agreement arrangement. 

The remuneration packages of the SMT (Excluding the Medical Director) are benchmarked against those of 
similar organisations and are reviewed annually by the Trustees. 

The Charity is a member of the Association of Air Ambulances. The Association was established as a 
membership body for those organisations which form the air ambulance services in the UK. Extensive use 
is being made of the contacts, primarily other air ambulance charities to learn and share best practice. 

Public Benefit Statement 

The Trustees confirm that they have due regard to the Charity Commission's guidance on public benefit and 
that the Charity meets the requirements in the advancements of its objectives. 

The Charity exists to provide free of charge emergency clinical care services to the people of the North West 
of England during daylight hours. Three helicopters are manned by highly skilled doctors and paramedics. 
In 2017 we will introduce consultant level doctors to operate from one helicopter. This will provide enhanced 
medical care services having the capacity to save lives by conducting advanced medical interventions at the 
scene of the accident or incident. 

Finance Investment and Risk 

The Charity's policy is to hold two years of operational expenditure as reserves to ensure continued financial 
security and to provide for contingencies. Trustees completed their review of their investment policy under 
the guidance of professional independent financial advisors and implemented it during the year. 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

TRUSTEES REPORT 

The current level of free reserves is broadly consistent with this policy. This will be kept under review as we 
develop our clinical and operational capability to deliver the best patient outcomes. 

The Charity is reliant on fundraising donations for its activities. Investment assets are held as reserves. A 
key risk to the long term reserves is inflation. The Charity's investment objective is to generate a return in 
excess of inflation. The Charity is aiming to achieve and maintain a real portfolio value of £10m over the 
medium to long term. The portfolio aims to preserve capital value as much as practically possible while 
seeking to achieve the above objective and also maintaining liquidity necessary to support operational 
requirements. 

The investment portfolio is held as folllows: 

Asset Class Fund Proportion 
Diversified Growth Fund SLI Global Absolute Return 

Strategies 
25% 

Diversified Growth Fund Black Rock Dynamic Diversified 
Growth Fund 

25% 

Cash SLI Liquidity Fund 50% 

Total 100% 

Implementation of the policy involved closing the existing investments held with Investec Wealth and 
Investment Limited and transferring surplus cash balances into the new funds. An initial investment of 
£9.5m was made in accordance with the strategy. 

The Trustees are advised by KPMG LLP who will assist the Trustees in their ongoing monitoring of the 
investments. 

During the year we have reported acceptable investment gains and income in line with our policy. 

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities 

The Trustees (who are also directors of North West Air Ambulance for the purposes of company law) are 

responsible for preparing the Trustees' Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with 

applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting 

Standards). 

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under 

company law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they 

give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the 

incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, ofthe charitable 

group forthat period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 

• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 

• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 

• state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

TRUSTEES REPORT 

• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume that 
the charitable company will continue in business. 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and 

explain the charitable company's transactions, disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 

position ofthe charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with 

the Companies Act 2006 and the provisions ofthe Charity's constitution. They are also responsible for 

safeguarding the assets of the Charity and the group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 

prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

Insofar as the Trustees are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by section 418 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of which the Charity's auditor is unaware and the Trustees have each taken all steps 
that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish 
that the auditor is aware of that information. 

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PLANS FOR FUTURE PERIOD 

Long term objectives 

The trustees have started a process to review our long-term objectives, mission statement and values. 

This is an important activity as it will drive our focus and direction over the medium to long term. 

Financial review 

We are a patient-focussed charity. Our key risks relate to patient safety, the safety of our crews and our 

ability to generate the funds necessary to continue our charitable activities. The Trustees manage these 

risks in a formal risk register. Some ofthe main risk management activities undertaken included the 

purchase of collision-avoidance equipment for each of our helicopters and reviewing and implementing 

an updated investment policy. Looking further forward, compliance with the new regulatory 

requirements for information governance will be an important and demanding activity for the whole 

organisation. 

Plans for future period 

In the next financial year we look to complete our review of long-term objectives and to enhance our 

clinical service by the addition of consultant-level doctors to our crews. 

Results of subsidiary companies and group 

The results of the Charity Group are summarised on the Statement of Financial Activities, and those of the 

subsidiary companies in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the special provisions of Part 15 ofthe Companies Act 

relating to smali companies. 

Approved by the Board of Trustees on and signed on its behalf by: 

Mrs Kim March 

7 



NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

We have audited the financial statements of North West Air Ambulance for the year ended 31 March 2017 
set out pages 10 to 29. 

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United 
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice) 

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of 
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and the charitable company's trustees as a body in accordance with 
section 154 of the Charities Act 2011. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
charitable company's members and trustees those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's 
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 
responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company, the charitable company's members as a body 
and the charitable company's trustees as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we 
have formed. 

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the 
directors of the charitable company for the purpose of company law) are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. 

We have been appointed as auditor under section 151 of the Charities Act 2011 and under the Companies 
Act 2006 and report in accordance with regulations made under those Acts. 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to 
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements 
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, 
whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are 
appropriate to the charitable company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the trustees; and the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Trustees' Annual Report to identify 
material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is 
apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the 
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or 
inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and the charitable company's affairs as at 31 March 
2017 and ofthe group's incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and 
expenditure, for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting 
Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Charities 
Act 2011. 

8 



NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

ln our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit 

• the information given in the Trustees' Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and 

• the Trustees' Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and parent company and its environment obtained 
in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' annual report. 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to 
report to you if, in our opinion: 

• the parent charitable company has not kept adequate accounting records, or 
• the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 
• certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or 
• the trustees were not entitled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the small companies 

regime and take advantage ofthe small companies exemption in preparing the Trustees Annual Report. 

Senior Statutory Auditor 

For and on behalf of 
Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP 
Statutory Auditor 
The Lexicon 
Mount Street 
Manchester 
M2 5NT 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 
(INCORPORATING AN INCOME & EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Notes Restricted 
funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2017 
£ 

Unrestricted 
funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2017 
£ 

Funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2017 

£ 

Funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£ 

Income from: 
Donations and legacies 
Charitable activities - patient 
transfers 
Other trading activities 
Investments 

4 

5 
3 

-
3,111,276 

30,000 

5,577,575 
65,644 

3,111,276 
30,000 

5,577,575 
65,644 

3,901,028 
11,266 

5,005,231 
89,218 

Total — 8,784,495 8,784,495 9,006,743 

Expenditure on: 
Raising funds: 
Commercial trading operations 
Other fundraising costs 

- 1,674,695 
1,053,112 

1,674,695 
1,053,112 

1,391,082 
1,018,207 

Charitable activities 
Cost of operation of the North 
West Air Ambulance 

6 

6 75,892 

2,727,807 

5,329,353 

2,727,807 

5,405,245 

2,409,289 

5,575,143 

Total 6 75,892 8,057,160 8,133,052 7,984,432 

Net Income / expenditure (75,892) 727,335 651,443 1,022,311 

Other recognised gains/(losses) 
Gains/Losses on investments 12 245,511 245,511 (57,080) 

Net movement in funds (75,892) 972,846 896,954 965,231 

Reconciliation of funds: 
Total funds brought forward 309,853 9,710,430 10,020,283 9,055,052 

Total funds carried forward 15 233,961 10,683,276 10,917,237 10,020,283 

The consolidated figures above include the results of the Charity which had income for the year of 
£7,109,799 (2016: £7,635,823) and a net surplus of £896,951 (2016: £965,231). 

The notes in the appended pages form part of these Financial Statements. 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

BALANCE SHEETS 
FOR THEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 
Registered Company Number: 03752544 

Notes Group Charity 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

Fixed Assets 
£ £ £ £ 

Tangible Assets 
Investments 
Intangible assets 

10 
12 
11 

108,963 
9,578,525 

20,000 

120,711 
3,572,209 

20,000 

15,039 
9,590,027 

52,322 
3,583,711 

9,707,488 3,712,920 9,605,066 3,636,033 

Current assets 
Stock 
Debtors 
Cash at bank and in hand 

13 
40,259 

643,497 
1,982,097 

26,549 
976,370 

6,857,255 
1,384,380 

765,172 
6,140,718 
1,061,731 

2,665,853 7,860,174 2,149,552 7,202,449 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year 14 (1,456,104) (1,552,811) (864,877) (845,692) 

Net current assets 1,209,749 6,307,363 1,284,675 6,356,757 

Net assets 10,917,237 10,020,283 10,889,741 9,992,790 

Income funds 
Restricted Funds 
Unrestricted - General Funds 
Unrestricted - Designated Funds 

15 
15 
15 

233,961 
3,838,019 
6,845,257 

309,853 
6,309,335 
3,401,095 

233,961 
3,810,523 
6,845,257 

309,853 
6,281,842 
3,401,095 

10,917,237 10,020,283 10,889,741 9,992,790 

The Financial Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on I / " / 1 

and signed on its behalf by: 

tu 
Allan Jude^J 
Trustee 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 866,597 1,710,303 

Cash Flows from investing activities 

Dividends and interest from investments 65,644 89,036 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (46,634) (71,505) 
Proceeds from investments 3,739,235 1,238,572 
Purchase of investments (9,500,000) (1,307,500) 
Net cash provided by investing activities (5,741,755) (51,397) 

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year. (4,875,158) 1,658,906 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,857,255 5,198,349 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year. 1,982,097 6,857,255 

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

Net incoming resources 651,443 1,022,311 
Investment income (65,644) (89,036) 
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 49,773 46,502 
Decrease in debtors 332,833 223,964 
Increase in stock (13,710) (10,412) 
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets 8,609 36,362 
(DecreaseVincrease in creditors (96,707) 480,612 

Net cash provided by operating activities 866,597 1,710,303 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

Cash at bank 1,982,097 6,857,255 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

1. Generai infomiation 

The Charity is a company limited by guarantee (registered number 03752544) which in 
incorporated in the UK. The address of the registered office is Stanley House, North Mersey 
Business Centre, Woodward Road, Knowsley, Merseyside L33 7UY. 

2. Accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which 
are considered material in relation to the Group's financial statements. 

Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable with the Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102) (effective 1 January 2015) - (Charities 
SORP (FRS102), the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(FRS102) and the Companies Act 2006. The date of transition was 1 April 2015 and in preparing 
the financial statements the Trustees have considered whether the accounting policies required 
by the standard require the restatement of comparative information. Please refer to note 21 for 
detail of transition adjustments. North West Air Ambulance meets the definition of a public benefit 
entity under FRS102. 

The Charity has taken advantage of the exemption available to a qualifying entity in FRS102 
from the requirement to produce a charity only cash flow statement with the consolidated financial 
statements. 

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, with the 
exception of investments which are included at market value. 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the Financial Statements of the subsidiary 
companies: North West Air Ambulance Promotions Limited and Friends of the North West Air 
Ambulance Lottery CIC for the year to 31 March 2017. This has been consolidated on a line by 
line basis in accordance with the requirements ofthe Charity SORP (FRS102). 

The Charity has not presented its own Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA) as permitted by 
the Companies Act 2006 and the provisions of the Charity SORP 2015 (FRS102). 

Going concern 

The trustees have reviewed the forecasts and budgets for the forthcoming period and have a 
reasonable expectation that the Charity has adequate resources to continue its activities for the 
foreseeable future and consider that there were no material uncertainties over the Charity's 
financial viability. 

Income, Grants and donations 

All incoming resources are included on the Statement of Financial Activities when the Charity is 
legally entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy. 

Grants and donations are included in the Statement of Financial Activities as they become due 
and are included in the relevant fund. Income expended is accounted for in the Statement of 
Financial Activities. 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Where income has donor imposed restrictions regarding its use, this is shown within restricted 
funds with related costs being allocated to the same fund. 

Where there is a timing restriction which requires income to be deferred to a future period, 
such amounts are shown within creditors and later credited to the Statement of Financial 
Activities as eligible. 

Donations in kind 

Where assets are donated to the Charity these are included within restricted income and costs 
at the market value of the asset or the value in use at the time of the donation. Where 
the cost is capitalised, a transfer is made out of restricted funds tothe extent that the restriction 
no longer exists. A threshold of £3,000 is operated for donations in kind. 

Legacies 

Legacies, which are included within voluntary income, are recognised when the bequest becomes 
due and is quantifiable. Any new legacy income received or first identified more than six weeks 
after the Charity's year end will be included in the following financial year's income for practical 
accounting purposes. 

Grants paid 

Grants paid are included in the Statement of Financial Activities as they become payable. 
These become payable when authorised by the trustees. 

Expenditure and support costs 

Expenditure has been charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on an accruals 
basis. Expenditure relating directly to the objectives of the Charity is shown as charitable 
expenditure. All costs have been directly attributed to one of the functional categories of 
resources expended in the statement of financial activities. There is deemed to be only one 
key objective to which charitable costs are allocated. 

Support costs are shown in note 8. These include Governance costs. Governance costs include 
an element of administrative staff costs / support costs which relate mainly to year end 
compliance costs and non fundraising related professional fees. 

Investments 

Investments are shown at market value. 

Commercial income 

Commercial income represents the amounts (excluding value added tax) received from the 
sale of goods to customers during the year through the trading subsidiary North West Air 
Ambulance Promotions Limited and income from the lottery run by Friends of the North West Air 
Ambulance Lottery CIC. All such turnover arises in the United Kingdom. 

Taxation 

The Charity does not have any charge to tax on its charitable activities. 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Unrestricted funds 

Unrestricted funds are funds which can be used in accordance with the charitable objects at 
the discretion of the trustees. 

Irrecoverable VAT 

Irrecoverable VAT is accounted for in the expenditure category under which the costs are 
incurred. 

Fixed Assets 

Tangible fixed assets for use by the Charity are stated as cost less depreciation. 

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less 
their estimated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases: 

All categories of assets: 20% on straight line basis 

Goodwill 

Goodwill being the amount paid in connection with the acquisition of a business in 2007, is being 
amortised until it reaches its residual value of £20,000. 

Stocks 

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowances for 
any obsolete or slow moving items. 

Donated goods received for sale in the shops are not valued as it is impractical to do so. 

Operating lease agreements 

Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of 
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis over the 
period ofthe lease 

Pension costs and post-retirement benefits 

The Charity operates a defined contribution scheme for the benefit of its employees. The 
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Charitable Company. Employer 
contributions in respect of this scheme are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities in 
the period to which they relate. 

Financial instruments 

The Group has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial 
instruments. Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at the transaction value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using an effective interest method. Financial assets are 
held at amortised cost comprise cash and bank in hand, together with trade and other debtors. 
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost comprise bank loans and overdrafts, trade and other 
creditors. 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the entity's accounting policies which are described above, the Trustees are 
required to make judgments, estimates, assumptions about the carrying value of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be 
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects the 
current and future periods. 

In the view of the Trustees, no assumptions concerning the future or estimation uncertainty 
affecting assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date are likely to result in a material adjustment 
to their carrying amounts in the next financial year. 

3. Investments - Group 

Year ended 
31 March 

2017 
£ 

Year ended 
31 March 

2016 
£ 

Bank Interest 
Current Asset Investment Income 

1,917 
63,727 

4,743 
84,475 

65,644 89,218 

4. Donations and Legacies - Group 

Year 
ended 

31 March 
2017 

£ 
Community Fundraising 
Corporate Fundraising 
Challenge Event 
Individual Giving 
Charitable Trust 
Unallocated Income 
Legacies 
Settlement of previous years Gift Aid 
Donations Gift Aid 

1,099,912 

715,903 
365,693 
192,082 
413,625 
74,895 
5,462 

155,409 
88,295 

3,111,276 

16 



NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 31 March 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

4,737,564 4,276,586 
840,011 728,645 

5,577,575 5,005,231 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March 31 March 

2017 2016 
£ £ 

4,718,261 4,922,957 
637,128 602,501 
30,024 49,685 

5,385,413 5,575,143 

470,756 365,758 
582,356 600,087 
19,832 52,362 

1,072,944 1,018,207 

824,577 671,328 
850,118 719,754 

1,674,695 1,391,082 

8,133,052 7,984,432 

Other trading activities - Group 

Lottery income 
Shop income 

Total expenditure - Group 

Direct Charitable expenditure 
Operating costs 
Support costs (note 8a) 
Depreciation 

Raising Funds 
Staff costs and travel (note 8a) 
Other expenses(note 8a) 
Investment managers fees 

Subsidiary expenses 
Lottery expenses 
Shop expenses 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

7. Staff members and costs -Group 

Year Year 
ended ended 

31 March 31 March 
Total staff costs for the year may be analysed as follows: 2017 2016 

£ £ 
Wages and salaries 793,774 617,645 
Social Security costs 61,697 49,961 
Pension costs 20,559 14,058 

876,030 681,664 

In addition to the staff costs above, there are further costs relating to operational staff and 
paramedics included within 'Operating costs' which are paid by way of a service level agreement. 
The costs of the Charity shop management staff (within the subsidiary company) are included 
within fundraising costs. 

The key management personnel of the Charity comprise the senior management team and are 
listed in the legal and administrative information on page 1. The total employee benefits of the 
key management personnel of the Charity were £278,539 (2016: £226,521). 

We also provided a clinical team including paramedics, doctors, despatch and a senior consultant. 
The costs of our contributions to the clinical team are reported within the financial statements with 
the balance, estimated in the region of £300-400k was borne by the NHS. 

The average number of employees (full time equivalents), analysed by function was as follows: 

Year Year 
ended ended 

31 March 31 March 
2017 2016 

Number Number 
Fundraising 14 10 
Administration 15 11 

29 21 

The remuneration package of the higher paid employees was: 

2017 2016 
No No 

£60,001 - £70,000 1 2 
£70,001 -£80,000 1 

The trustees received no remuneration from the Charity (2016: £nil), reimbursement of expenses 
during the year totalled Enil (2016: £nil). During the year professional indemnity insurance was 
purchased relating to all of the trustees, at a cost of £1,796 (2016: £2,000). 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

8a Support costs 

Support costs are allocated to fundraising and direct charitable expenditure as follows (on the 
basis outlined below): 

Total Charitable Fundraising 
Activities Costs 

£ £ £ 

Cost of raising funds 94,780 94,780 
Staff cost and travel 941,516 470,758 470,758 
Office and utility costs 76,408 38,204 38,204 
Events and consultancy 96,851 - 96,851 
Stationery, postage and telephone 20,777 10,389 10,388 
Advertising and website 212,409 - 212,409 
Professional fees and other costs 172,966 43,242 129,724 
Governance costs 74,535 74,535 -

1,690,242 637,128 1,053,114 

8b Support costs - Basis of allocation 

Support costs are allocated to fundraising and direct charitable expenditure on the basis outlined 
below: 

Total Charitable Fundraising Basis of 
Activities Costs allocation 

£ % % 

Costs of raising funds 94,780 _ 100 Nature of 
service 

Staff cost and travel 941,516 50 50 Staff 
numbers 

Office and utility costs 76,408 50 50 Staff 
numbers 

Events and consultancy 96,851 - 100 Nature of 
service 

Stationery and postage 20,777 50 50 Staff 
numbers 

Advertising and website 212,409 - 100 Nature of 
services 

Professional fees and other costs 172,966 25 75 Nature of 
services 

Governance costs 74,535 100 - Nature of 
services 

1,690,242 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

8c Governance costs 

Non fundraising related professional fees 
Auditors fees - audit and accounts 
Depreciation 
Bank charges and other 
HMRC Penalty 

Year Year 
ended ended 

31 March 31 March 
2017 2016 

£ £ 
13,959 21,094 
15,336 12,750 

- 12,421 
20,028 3,787 
25,212 -

74,535 50,052 

Taxation 

Neither the Charity nor its subsidiary company had any liability to corporation tax during the year. 

10 Tangible Fixed Assets 

Group 

Cost 

At 1 April 2016 
Additions 
Disposals 

At 31 March 2017 

Plant & 
machinery 

192,586 
44,619 

(38,691) 

198,514 

Office and Motor Vehicles 
computer 

equipment 

59,542 
2,015 

61,557 

£ 

48,877 

48,877 

Total 

301,005 
46,634 
(38,691) 

308,948 

Depreciation 

At 1 April 2016 119,474 
Charge for the year 37,112 
Eliminated on disposal (30,082) 

At 31 March 2017 126,504 

14,043 
10,560 

24,603 

46,777 
2,100 

48,877 

180,294 
49,773 
(30,082) 

199,985 

31 March 2017 72,010 36,954 108,963 

31 March 2016 73,112 45,498 2,100 120,711 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Charity Plant & Office and Motor 
machinery computer Vehicles Total 

equipment 

Cost £ £ £ £ 

At 1 April 2016 117,970 19,958 26,878 164,806 
Additions 1,350 - - 1,350 
Disposals (38,692) - - (38,692) 

At 31 March 2017 80,628 19,958 26,878 127,464 

Depreciation 

At 1 April 2016 74,081 11,525 26,878 112,484 
Charge for the year 27,515 2,509 - 30,024 
Eliminated on disposal (30,083) - - (30,083) 

At 31 March 2017 71,513 14,034 26,878 112,425 

31 March 2017 9,115 5,924 - 15,039 

31 March 2016 43,888 8,433 - 52,322 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

11 Intangible Fixed Assets- Group 

Computer 
software 

£ 
Cost 
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 125,000 

Amortisation 
At 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 105,000 

Net Book Value 
At 31 March 2017 20,000 

At 31 March 2016 20,000 

12 Fixed Asset Investments 

Group 2017 2016 
£ £ 

Carrying value (MV) at beginning of year 3,572,209 3,560,359 
Additions at cost 4,750,000 29,006 
lncrease/(decrease) in cash balance 4,750,000 1,278,494 
Disposals at carrying value (3,739,235) (1,238,572) 
Net gain/loss on revaluation 245,551 (57,078) 

Carrying value (MV) at end of year 9,578,525 3,572,209 

Historical cost of above investment at the end of the year 9,500,000 3,206,334 

Analysis or investment value by type: 2017 2016 
£ £ 

UK listed equities - 678,280 
UK fixed interest - 519,777 
Overseas equities - 830,212 
Overseas fixed interest - 55,645 
Diversified Growth Funds 4,811,539 
Liquidity funds 4,766,986 1,488,295 

9,578,525 3,572,209 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Investments with a market value of over 5% of the total market value of investments are as follows: 
2017 

£ 
Blackrock Dynamic Diversified Growth Fund Class D 2,417,586 
SLI FGIobal Absolute Return Strategies Fund 2,396,025 
Standard Life Investment Liquidity Fund 4,764,914 

Charity 2017 2016 
£ £ 

Investments in listed securities 9,578,525 3,572,209 
Investments in subsidiary entities 11,502 11,502 

9,590,027 3,583,711 

Investment in subsidiary entities 2017 2016 
£ £ 

Ordinary £1 shares in North West Air Ambulance 
Promotions Limited - at market value 11,502 11,502 

The historical cost of these investments was £11,502 (2016: £11,502). 

The Charity has two subsidiaries, North West Air Ambulance Promotions Limited, a company 
incorporated in England and Wales (Company Number: 03752582) and Friends ofthe North West 
Air Ambulance Lottery CIC (Registered Number 6646759) which are consolidated into the results 
of the North West Air Ambulance. The Charity owns the entire share capital of North West Air 
Ambulance Promotions Limited, being 11,502 ordinary shares. The company raised funds for the 
North West Air Ambulance during the year. 

Audited Financial Statements of North West Air Ambulance Promotions Limited and Friends of the 
North West Air Ambulance Lottery CIC for the year ended 31 March 2017 are filed with the 
Registrar of Companies. A summary of the trading results of North West Air Ambulance 
Promotions Limited and Friends of the North West Air Ambulance Lottery CIC are shown below: 

North West Air Ambulance Promotions Limited 
2017 2016 

£ £ 

Turnover 840,011 728,645 
Cost of sales (101,508) (79,035) 

Gross profit 738,503 649,610 
Gift aid payment - (7,641) 
Administrative expenses (748,610) (640,719) 

Operating (loss)/profit (10,107) 1,250 

Interest payable (1,250) (1,250) 

Loss on ordinary activities after tax (11,357) 

23 



NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

The aggregate of assets, liabilities and reserves are: 

Assets 
Liabilities 

Total reserves (including £11,502 share capital) 

North West Air Ambulance Lottery CIC 

Turnover 

Cost of sales 

Gross Surplus 

Administration expenses 
Gift aid payment 

Operating Surplus 

Interest receivable and similar income 

Surplus on ordinary activities before taxation 

Tax on surplus on ordinary activities 

Surplus for the financial year 

2017 
£ 

347,773 
(343,635) 

4,138 

2017 
£ 

4,737,564 

(699,281) 

4,038,283 

(125,296) 
(3,913,126) 

(139) 

139 

2016 
£ 

256,974 
(241,479) 

15,495 

2016 
£ 

4,276,586 

(572,628) 

3,703,958 

(98,700) 
(3,605,440) 

(182) 

182 

The aggregate assets, liabilities and reserves are: 

Assets 
Liabilities 

2017 
£ 

1,170,574 
(1,147,073) 

2016 
£ 

5,739,648 
(5,716,147) 

Total reserves 23,501 23,501 

The consolidated statements of financial activities includes the results ofthe subsidiary companies. 

The total income ofthe Charity before consolidation adjustments is £7,109,799 (2016: 
£7,615,660). 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13 Debtors 

Group Group Charity Charity 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 
Trade debtors 16,734 13,861 13,500 9,162 
Amounts owed by subsidiary 
undertakings - - 886,698 5,242,074 
Prepayments 363,094 331,046 282,036 274,527 
Accrued income 212,022 550,182 151,015 549,578 
Other debtors 51,647 81,281 51,131 65,377 

643,497 976,370 1,384,380 6,140,718 

Debtors includes £175,000 (2016: £75,000) due after more than one year. 

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

Group Group Charity Charity 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 
Trade creditors 692,913 566,461 576,006 409,600 
Sundry creditors 5,879 - 5,879 -
Social security and other taxes 25,881 - 19,588 -
Accruals 307,301 482,275 263,404 436,092 
Prepaid Subscriptions 424,130 504,075 - -

1,456,104 1,552,811 864,877 845,692 
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NORTH WEST AIR AMBULANCE 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

15 Reconciliation of movement in funds 

Charity 

Restricted 
funds 

1 April 2016 Incoming 
resources 

£ £ 

Outgoing 
resources 

£ 

Gains/ 
(losses) 

£ 

Transfers 

£ 

31 March 
2017 

£ 

Mrs Kluziac 
Georges 
Garage Trust 
LIBOR 

61,353 
7,500 

241,000 

-
(2,339) 
(4.343) 

(69,210) _ 

-
59,014 
3,157 

171,790 

309,853 - (75.892) - - 233,961 

Unrestricted 
funds 
General 
Designated 

6.281,842 
3,401,095 

7,109,799 (6,382.467) 245,511 (3,444,162) 
3,444,162 

3,810,523 
6,845,257 

9,682,937 7,109,799 (6,382,467) 245,511 - 10,655,780 

Total funds 9,992,790 7,109,799 (6,458,359) 245,511 10,889,741 

Group 

Restricted 
funds 

1 April 2016 

£ 

Incoming 
Resources 

£ 

Outgoing 
resources 

£ 

Gains/ 
(losses) 

Transfers 

£ 

31 March 2017 

£ 

Mrs Kluziac 
Georges 
Garage Trust 
LIBOR 

61,353 
7,500 

241,000 

-
(2,339) 
(4,343) 

(69,210) 

-

_ 

59,014 
3,157 

171,790 

309,853 - (75,892) - - 233,961 

Unrestricted 
funds 
General 
Designated 

6,309,335 
3,401,095 

8,784,495 (8,057,160) 245,511 (3,444,162) 
- 3,444,162 

3,838,019 
6,845,257 

9,710,430 8,784,495 (8,057,160) 245,511 - 10,683,276 

Total funds 10,020,283 8,784,495 (8,133,052) 245,511 - 10,917,237 
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The trustees' reserve policy is to achieve reserves that will ensure two years operational costs of 
the three aircraft currently operated and leased by the organisation. This means that the 
organisation aims to maintain reserves in excess of £10 million. 

The designated fund of £6,845,257 shown above has been earmarked to cover two years annual 
lease commitments as described in note 17. It is imperative that the Charity is able to meet these 
costs before committing other expenditure. 

The restricted balance called Mrs Kluziac relates to a legacy received in previous years of £61K 
which is to be used against future training costs. The LIBOR restricted funds balance relates to 
funds received in the previous year of £241K for development of pre hospital emergency medical 
education/activities. 

All balances on the balance sheet relate to the unrestricted funds with the exception of restricted 
funds which are represented by cash. 

16 Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 

Group Unrestricted Restricted Total Total 
2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 

Fixed assets 9,707,488 - 9,707,488 3,712,920 
Current assets 2,431,892 233,961 2,665,853 7,860,174 
Current liabilities (1,456,104) - (1,456,104) (1,552,811) 

10,683,276 233,961 10,917,237 10,020,283 

17 Operating lease commitments 

Future minimum lease repayments under non-cancellable operating leases for the following 
periods are: 

Property Helicopters Total Total 
2017 2016 

£ £ £ £ 

Within lyear 255,990 3,370,084 3,626,074 3,315,059 
After 1 year and less than 5 years 527,448 6,136,941 6,664,389 10,186,969 
More than 5 years 16.110 - 16,110 114,603 

Total operating lease commitments 799,548 9,507,025 10,306,573 13,616,631 
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18 Related party transactions 

Three trustee directors of the Charity (K March, A Jude and S Meehan) are also directors of the 
trading subsidiaries: North West Air Ambulance Promotions Limited and Friends of the North West 
Air Ambulance Lottery CIC. The transactions with these entities are consolidated with the results 
of the Charity and as such do not require separate disclosure. 

19 Transactions with Directors 

Legal fees of £24,447 were incurred by the Charity from The Gunner Cooke Partnership, a 
partnership in which Darryl Cooke is a key member. At the year end (2016: £30K) no accrual was 
required in respect of legal fees outstanding. 

These transactions were of a type allowed for in the Charity's Memorandum and Articles of 
Association and were carried out in accordance with the Charity's Conflict of Interest Policy. 

20 Financial Instruments 

Group 2017 2016 

£ £ 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 2.262.499 7.502.579 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value 9,578.525 3.572.209 

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1.006.093 1.048.736 

Financial assets at amortised cost consist of cash, trade debtors and other debtors 

Financial assets held at fair value include assets held as investments 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost consist of trade creditors and other creditors 

21 Transition to FRS 102 

The Charity has reviewed the nature of its relationship with Friends of North West Air Ambulance 
Lottery CIC as part of the transition to FRS 102. It has concluded that the nature of the relationship 
meets the requirements of a controlled entity. Friends of the North West Air Ambulance Lottery 
CIC has therefore been consolidated into the group accounts as a subsidiary and the comparatives 
have been restated. The effect of the consolidation of Friends of the North West Air Ambulance 
Lottery CIC are disclosed in note 12. The opening group reserves as at 1 April 2015 have been 
increased by £23,501. 
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22. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - Comparative figures by fund 
type 

Income and endowments from: 
Donations and legacies 
Charitable activities 
Other trading activities 
Investments 

Total 

Expenditure on: 
Raising funds: 
Commercial trading operations 
Other fundraising costs 

Charitable activities 
Cost of operation of the North West Air 
Ambulance 

Total 

Net Income / expenditure 

Other recognised gains/(losses) 

Gains/Losses on investments 

Net movement in funds 

Reconciliation of funds: 
Total funds brought forward 

Restricted 
funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 
£ 

521,500 

521,500 

273,000 

273,000 

248,500 

248,500 

61,353 

Unrestricted 
funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 
£ 

3,379,528 
11,266 

5,005,231 
89,218 

8,485,243 

1,391,082 
1,018,207 

2,409,289 

5,302,143 

7,711,432 

773,811 

(57,080) 

716,731 

Funds total 
Year ended 

31 March 
2016 

£ 

3,901,028 
11,266 

5,005,231 
89,218 

9,006,743 

1,391,082 
1,018,207 

2,409,289 

5,575,143 

7,984,432 

1,022,311 

(57,080) 

965,231 

8,993,699 9,055,052 

Total funds carried forward 309,853 9,710,430 10,020,283 
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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 
 

Please check before sending:    
 Is your project or service based in Kendal? 

Have you read the grants criteria? 
 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? 
 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 
If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: Outside-In  
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Cat Altounyan (Secretary) 
 

 

Daytime Telephone: 07709 183578     E-mail: cataltounyan@hotmail.com 

 

Address: 34 Mint Street, Kendal, LA9 6DS 

1. Please tell us about your organisation: Outside-In was set up in late 2017, the idea of a local parent 
Mhairi Helme. There is currently no indoor play facility in Kendal (where it rains on average 220 days per 
year!) and following a survey of more than 550 people which demonstrated the huge enthusiasm and need 
for the facility a committee are now in the later stages of planning a play centre to open in Spring 2019. 
Based at Nether Hall in Kendal, open all day, 6 days per week, the centre will provide: 

• A multi-level soft-play castle (based on Kendal Castle) with a ball-pit moat providing much needed 
opportunities for exercise for local children when the weather is poor.  

• A ‘tiny-town’ based on Kendal’s Stricklandgate which will feature a Doctors, Vets, supermarket, 
Pizza-place, Hairdressers and Nursery – the shops will rotate to encourage repeat visits and will 
provide myriad opportunities for role-play, extending imagination, learning and childhood 
development. 

• A ‘Changing Places’ toilet, accessible by separate door, this will allow local visitors to the town 
who need a hoist to get changed to visit the town-centre more easily.  

• A flexible, flat play space accessible to wheelchair users and groups. 
           

 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for: 
We are applying for funding to contribute to the overall capital costs to set up the play centre - £130,000, 
this includes the play equipment, a Changing Places toilet, a kitchen and cafe furniture and equipment. So 
far we have raised £49,100 in grants from a range of funders, and need to find a further £80,000 to fund 
the set-up costs, however our Business Planning (conducted in consultation with a wide-range of local 
experts) anticipates that once the play centre is open it will be predominantly self-supporting, relying on 
entry fees (suggested donation of £3.50 for the first child) and cafe income to be sustainable, much like 
many similar ‘soft-play’ businesses. However, unlike many businesses, we are a not-for-profit organisation 
(currently applying for CIO status) which allows us to use the profits to benefit people in Kendal and the 
South Lakes. Our aims intend to ensure that the facilities we offer are accessible and used by the most 
disadvantaged in the area as well as the more privileged. As a result, as well as being available on a 
suggested donation basis, the centre will provide specific facilities for children with additional needs, 
including a room specifically designed for the needs of children who have autism or aspergers, a play area  
and mobile hoist for wheelchair users as well as a Changing Places toilet facility.  
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit? 
We need the financial support of KTC to help us turn an innovative and popular idea into a 
fantastic asset for the town.  
 
Cumbria has the highest rate of childhood obesity in the country, with 28.2% of children in 
Cumbria being overweight or obese compared to a national average of 22.6%. In Kendal and the 
South Lakes, when the weather is wet, windy or very cold, it can be very difficult to find 
something to do to exercise or engage young children. Affordability is also an issue as many 
tourist destinations are expensive as well as seasonal. Outside-In will provide an innovative, high 
quality, engaging and affordable experience aimed firmly at local pre-school and primary age 
children. Children will be able to jump, swing, climb, run, slide and play, imagine, interact with 
their families and other children.  
 
Throughout the development of this project we have worked hard to ensure that it will serve the 
needs of the local community. We have worked closely with a wide range of community groups, 
consulting parents and families at local play groups and a focus group with children at Castle 
Park School. We have also consulted widely with local community groups serving disadvantaged 
people such as Leonard Cheshire, Manna House, Sandgate School, Bendrigg, South Lakeland 
Young Carers and South Lakes Autism and Aspergers support group and the Integrated Support 
Community and their I-matter training programme. The enthusiasm and support from each of 
these groups highlights the need for something like this in the town. Their feedback has also 
helped shape the facilities we will provide (ie Changing places toilet) but the design will also 
include a dedicated ‘shop’ for children with autism, including specific toys, acoustics and colours 
that ensure it is engaging and accessible to a wide-range of visitors. Feedback from each of 
these groups has been incorporated to help serve the needs of everyone.   

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
 
We anticipate that we will have almost 25,000 visits to the centre by children in our first year. In 
South Lakeland there are 9,200 children aged 0-9 (our target audience).  
 
We have secured funding for an Outreach Support Officer for the first year of the project to 
specifically focus on working with children and families from disadvantaged backgrounds to help 
reduce barriers (real and percieved) to using the centre. We want to ensure that we are 
accessible to as many people as possible, right from the start.   
 
To help give a picture of what the centre might look like we have supplied an initial design for the 
larger room of Nether Hall, which will be the main play area.  
 
We have also supplied the full Business Plan for Outside-In, however, the ‘project budget’ that I 
have referred to in the project costs for this application, can be found in the ‘Itemised startup 
costs’ tab and our fundraising progress in the ‘Funding Strategy’ tab.  
 
We are in the later stages of a bid to the Big Lottery Reaching Communities Fund, for £60,000. If 
successful this will bring in the majority of the remaining funds to be raised.  

Total cost of project or service £129,900             Amount requested £5,000 

Funds received to date  £4,100        Funds pledged to date £45,000 
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
  

Source Total 
 
 £25,000 

 
Frieda Scott Trust £10,000 

 
Cumbria County Council 0-19 Fund £10,000 

Kendal & Windermere Lions 
 £3,000 

Crowdfunding & Local Councillors 
 £2,100 

Total Funds Raised £49,100 
 
 

 
Signed:  Cat Altounyan    Date: 23 August 2018 
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
 
Organisation’s Account Name…Outside In Kendal………………………………………………… 
 
Sort Code:.40-26-02…………………  Account Number:  31609092…………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
Visitor feedback forms will be our most frequent evaluation tool, helping us monitor the frequency and length 
of visits as well as those aspects of the centre which are most popular. We will also spend time talking 
directly to people who visit and, via our Outreach Support Officer, those who don’t wish to. We will work 
closely with the community groups who use our facilities to evaluate the impact on their service users. We 
will also explore opportunities to monitor and evaluate the impact on the social capital of parents, carers and 
families who use the centre reguarly.   
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
SLDC Locally Important Projects 
  
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 
Outside-In has only been constituted since January 2018 and therefore, has no accounts available yet, I 
have included a copy of our latest bank statement and the latest version of our Business Plan, in full.   

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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64 Highgate Kendal Cumbria LA9 4TF 

Opening Balance 1,652.82

Payments In 0.00

Payments Out 450.00

Clos ing Balance 1,202.82

GB97HBUK40260231609092

HBUKGB4135V
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HSBC UK Bank plc  
Registered in England and Wales with registration number 09928412  
Registered office: 1 Centenary Square, Birmingham B1 1HQ, 
United Kingdom
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Interest
Credit Interest is calculated daily on the cleared credit 
balance and is paid monthly if applicable (this is not paid on all 
accounts, eg, Basic Bank Account, Bank Account and HSBC 
Advance). For personal current accounts (excluding Premier 
and Jade by HSBC Premier) overdraft interest is only charged 
on arranged overdrawn balances. Debit interest is calculated 
daily on the cleared debit balance of your account, it accrues 
during your charging cycle (usually monthly) and is deducted 
from your account following the end of your charging cycle.

Effective from 1 August 2017 
Monthly cap on unarranged overdraft charges
1. Each current account will set a monthly maximum 
charge for:

(a) going overdrawn when you have not arranged an 
overdraft; or

(b) going over/past your arranged overdraft limit (if you 
have one). 

2. This cap covers any:

(a) interest and fees for going over/past your arranged 
overdraft limit;

(b) fees for each payment your bank allows despite lack 
of funds; and

(c) fees for each payment your bank refuses due to lack 
of funds. 

The monthly cap on unarranged overdraft charges for 
the Bank Account, Current Account, Home Management 
Account, HSBC Advance Bank Account and Graduate Bank 
Account is £80.

The monthly cap on unarranged overdraft charges is not 
applicable to Bank Account Pay Monthly, Basic Bank 
Account, Student Bank Account, Amanah Bank Account 
and MyAccount as these accounts do not incur unarranged 
overdraft charges. 

The introduction of the Monthly Maximum Charge will not 
affect any charging period that ended prior to 1st August 2017. 
Any notification of charges that are generated on or after  
1st August 2017 will incorporate the new Monthly Maximum 
Charge cap.

The following references regarding debit cards only 
apply to personal customers, commercial customers 
please refer to your terms and conditions.

Your debit card
When you use your card abroad, your statement will show 
where the transaction took place, the amount spent in local 
currency and the amount converted into sterling. We also 
monitor transactions to protect you against your card being 
used fraudulently.

Unless you agree that the currency conversion is done at the 
point of sale or withdrawal and agree the rate at that time, for 
example with the shopkeeper or on the self-service machine 
screen, the exchange rate that applies to any non-sterling 
debit card payments (including cash withdrawals) is the VISA 
Payment Scheme Exchange Rate applying on the day the 
conversion is made.

For non-Sterling (foreign currency) transactions we will charge 
a fee of 2.75% of the amount of the transaction. This fee will 
be shown as a separate line on your statement as a ‘Non-
Sterling Transaction Fee’.

Details of the current VISA Payment Scheme Exchange Rates 
can be obtained from the card support section of hsbc.co.uk 
(UK customers) or ciiom.hsbc.com (Channel Islands and Isle 
of Man customers) or by calling us on the usual numbers.  
We will deduct the payment from your account once we 
receive details of the payment from the card scheme, at the 
latest, the next working day.

For cash machine withdrawals in a currency other than 
sterling we will charge a Non Sterling Cash Fee of 2% 
(minimum £1.75, maximum £5). This fee applies to all cash 
machines outside the UK, Channel islands and the Isle of Man 
and to cash machines in the UK, Channel Islands and Isle of 
Man if we convert the withdrawal to Sterling for you. HSBC 
Advance customers are exempt from this fee. 

Some cash machine operators may apply a direct charge for 
withdrawals from their cash machines and this will be advised 
on screen at the time of withdrawal.

Recurring Transaction
A recurring transaction, sometimes called a continuous 
payment authority, is a series of payments collected with 
your agreement from your card by a retailer or supplier (for 
example, insurance cover). This is an agreement between 
you and the retailer. The Direct Debit Guarantee does not 
cover these transactions. If you wish to cancel a recurring 
transaction you can do this with the retailer or us. We can 
cancel the payment, however contacting the retailer allows 
you to also deal with the agreement you have with them 
and you can make other arrangements for the payment or 
cancellation of the goods or services. If you cancel with 
the retailer, we recommend you keep evidence of the 
cancellation. Once you have cancelled with the retailer or us, 
if the retailer does try to collect any future payments under 
the recurring transaction agreement, we will treat these as 
unauthorised. If we miss any of the cancelled transactions, 
please contact us.

The following references apply to all customers

Dispute resolution
If you have a problem with your agreement, please try 
to resolve it with us in the first instance. If you are not 
happy with the way in which we handled your complaint 
or the result, you may be able to complain to the Financial 
Ombudsman Service. If you do not take up your problem 
with us first you will not be entitled to complain to the 
Ombudsman. We can provide details of how to contact the 
Ombudsman.

The Financial Ombudsman Service does not apply to 
customers of our branches in the Channel Islands and Isle of 
Man, but you could be entitled to refer your complaint to the 
Channel Islands Financial Ombudsman in Jersey or Guernsey 
or the Financial Services Ombudsman Scheme in the Isle of 
Man. Please contact your branch for further details.

Telephone Banking Service
Customer representatives are available from 8am – 10pm 
everyday and 24 hours a day for HSBC Advance customers. 
Calls may be monitored or recorded for quality purposes. 
Alternatively for all your banking needs go to hsbc.co.uk  
(UK customers) or ciiom.hsbc.com (Channel Islands and  
Isle of Man customers).

Disabled Customers
We offer a number of services such as statements in 
Braille or large print. Please contact us to let us know 
how we can serve you better.

Lost and stolen cards
If any of your cards issued by us are lost or stolen please call 
our 24-hour service immediately on 03456 007 010 or if you 
are calling from abroad, please call us on 44 1442 422 929.
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KENDAL TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Grant Application Form 
 

Please check before sending:    

 Is your project or service based in Kendal? √ 

Have you read the grants criteria? √ 

 Have you attached a copy of your latest audited accounts? √ 

 (No application will be considered without a copy of your latest audited accounts) 

If you have any queries then please contact us on:  01539 793490 or e-mail:office@kendatowncouncil.gov.uk. 
Please note: Information which you provide in this application will be considered in an open meeting of the 

Audit, Grants and Charities Committee and is therefore in the public domain. 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Name of your organisation: Manna House (Cumbria) 
 
 

Correspondent (and position): Andrea Aldridge, Chief Officer 
 

 

Daytime Telephone:01539 725534     E-mail: andreaa@manna-house.org.uk 

 

Address: Castle Lodge, Aynam Road, Kendal, LA9 7DE 

1. Please tell us about your organisation: 
Manna House provide support for those who are homeless and vulnerably housed. We 
provide a holistic, individually tailored service that enables people to move from a place of 
crisis towards increased well-being and stability. In the first instance we provide a safety net 
to emotionally support people whilst putting in motion some of the requirements for becoming 
securely housed and fitting into the mainstream. We work holistically with people and offer 
unconditional acceptance, designing our programme around people’s own abilities, needs 
and interests. Manna House offers housing and benefits advice, a social drop in lunch three 
times a week, a learning kitchen from which our Skills Café is run, Mens’ and Women’s 
Groups and many opportunities to engage within a safe and encouraging environment. 

 
Our ultimate aim is for our clients to develop basic life skills and self-confidence to deal 
successfully with life in the community at large. 

 
              

              
               

    
  
                

                
           

 
 

2. Briefly describe the project or service you want funding for: 
 
Manna House will be moving premises on Wednesday 17th October 2018 to Ann Street.  While 
money has been secured to make the internal workings of the building fit for purpose, the 
landscaping and exterior smoking shelter have not been included.   
 
We would like to landscape an area of the current car park and build a green roofed shelter 
where clients can smoke discreetly while still being visible to our reception staff.  We would like 
the area to be beautiful, offering our clients an opportunity to design and create their own shelter, 
and also to engage in taking care of a house’s exterior on an ongoing basis.  
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3. Why do you need this grant and how will the people of Kendal benefit?  
 
The Stephenson Centre on Ann Street is in a more residential area than our previous premises.  
Manna House is keen that our neighbours appreciate and respect our presence in the 
neighbourhood and giving them a beautiful view is part of that. The Stephenson Centre backs 
closely onto the row of houses on Appleby Road.  Their current view is of a concrete wall.  It is 
our intention to give them a better view, with three potted trees planned for this part of the 
building which will both look lovely and distract from any movement noticed from our new kitchen 
window. 
 
Our neighbours at Ann House will have sight of our bins and we would like to build a wooden bin 
enclosure to pep up that particularly unattractive aspect of daily life. 
 
Both residents of Ann House and those living in Dry Salter’s Yard have oversight of the Manna 
House car park.  Currently this is just tarmac.  Manna House clients – for better or worse – tend 
to be smokers. To pre-empt the sight and smell - and to some extent sound - of our folks hanging 
about in the car park puffing away, we intend to build a small three sided brick shelter with a 
green roof. 
 
This elegant solution means we would provide a better view to those overlooking the car park; 
contain and keep from view the sight of smokers hanging about; provide those who smoke with 
structure, shelter and a way to be “clean” about their habit; and because clients will be helping to 
build and landscape this, some investment in its upkeep with a sense of community contribution. 

4. Please provide any other information in support of your application. 
 
The Manna House move to new premises will certainly stir up uncomfortable and stressful 
feelings of anxiety for our clients. Many of them will have life experiences that convince them that 
change is bad and that things are “done to” them.  They may feel inclined to give up and hide 
away from something new, even if the old was good for them. Their coping mechanisms may be 
to rely upon addictions, act out towards others or simply be non-existent.  So while no one really 
enjoys change, it is especially important that Manna House clients experience the transition to 
the Stephenson Centre in an invested and healthy way. 
 
As part of the Manna House community, as part of the larger neighbourhood, as part of making 
Kendal beautiful, this landscaping and green roofed shelter build is a great way to create buy in 
for Manna House clients, building their self-esteem and providing purpose and a sense of 
belonging.  Led by volunteers, we intend to build a bin enclosure and landscape all the exterior of 
the building on Ann Street, while professional builders make us a green roofed smoking shelter 
which clients, staff and volunteers have designed with the help of a volunteer architect. 
 

Total cost of project or service £ 4,200  Amount requested £3,000 

Funds received to date  £        In-Kind pledges to date  £1,200 
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5. What other sources of funding have already been raised or promised? 
       

        
Source Total 
 
Leaders’ volunteer time £30 x 15 hours £ 450 

 
Architect’s volunteer time £100 x 3 hours £ 300 

 
Donation of planters  £ 200 

 
Donation of trees and plants £ 250 

 
 £ 

Total Funds Pledged £1,200 
 
 

 
 

6. How do you propose to evaluate that the service or project has been a success? 
 
Manna House is hoping to make relationship with our neighbours and regularly keep in touch with 
them.  We intend to invite them to our Open House in early 2019 and will be soliciting feedback on 
how to be the best neighbours we can be.  Success would be in receiving positive feedback from 
20 neighbours and engaging as many clients in this meaningful enhancement of our new 
neighbourhood. 
 

 
Signed:         Date:  
 

 
Grants are paid, net of VAT, directly to organisations’ bank accounts, so we will need the following 
details from you:   
 
Organisation’s Account Name…………………………………………………………………… 
 
Sort Code:..……………………………  Account Number: ………………..………………. 
 
Completed applications should be sent to:  
 

treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk   Jack Jones, Town Treasurer 
        Kendal Town Council 
        Town Hall 
        KENDAL  
        Cumbria LA9 4DL 
        Tel: 01539 793490 
 
         
 
 
 
                  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7. Please provide a copy of your latest audited accounts with your application. 

mailto:treasurer@kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk
http://www.kendaltowncouncil.gov.uk/
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Registered Charity No. 1147785 

 
Report and Financial Statements 

Year Ended 31 August 2017 
 

 
Manna House works for the benefit of the public in South Lakeland, providing advice, advocacy 

and a drop-in support centre for those who are homeless, vulnerably-housed, lonely or needing help. 
 
 

 
Trustees 

 
Colin Greaves Chairman 
Marilyn Molloy Vice Chair 

Tony Wade Treasurer 
Marilyn Wadsworth Trustee 

Paul Rodman              Trustee 
Harriet Kelly Trustee 

  
 
Office Address:       Independent Examiner 
Castle Lodge, Aynam Road      Alan Stubbs FCMA 
Cumbria, LA9 7DE       c/o Cumbria CVS 
Tel: 01539 725534       6 Hobson Court, Gillan Way 
Email: info@manna-house.org.uk      Penrith, Cumbria 
Website:  www.manna-house.org.uk                                       CA11 9GQ 
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Section 1 - Legal and Administrative Information 
 

� Charity Name     Manna House (Cumbria) 

� Other names by which the charity is known “Manna House” 

� Registered Charity Number   1147785 

� Company Limited by Guarantee Number  8041948 

� For the financial period beginning  1st September 2016 

� For the financial year ending   31st August 2017 

� Charity’s principal address:   Castle Lodge, Aynam Road, 

Kendal, Cumbria LA9 7DE 
 
Names of Charity Trustees 

 
Name Office Dates  

(Where less than 1 year) 
Mr Colin Greaves Chairman  
Mrs Marilyn Molloy Vice Chair  
Mr Tony Wade Treasurer  
Mrs Marilyn Wadsworth Trustee  
Mr Paul Rodman Trustee  
Mrs Harriet Kelly Trustee  

 
Appointment of Trustees: 
Trustees are appointed by a resolution of the Trustees. A trustee must be a Company Member. 
The number of Trustees must always be the same as the number of Company Members. The 
minimum number of Trustees is three, but there is no maximum. 

 
Description of Charity Objects 
For the benefit of the public: To provide services for those who are homeless, vulnerably housed, 
lonely or lacking social support for those living in Cumbria and Lancashire and in such other parts 
of the United Kingdom and the world as the Trustees may from time to time think fit; and to fulfil 
such other purposes which are exclusively charitable according to the law of England and Wales 
and are connected to charitable work of the Charity as the Trustees may from time to time think fit. 

 
… Cont’d 
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Charity’s Bankers 
 

Charity’s bankers are Cumberland Building Society,  
Castle Street,  
Carlisle, CA3 8RX 
Sort Code: 16 52 21 
Account Number: 53190423 
 
CCLA Investment Management LTD 
COIF Charity Funds 
80 Cheapside, LONDON EC2V 6DZ 
Account Number 015370001C 
 

 
 

The charity is a company limited by guarantee and is controlled by its governing document, a 
memorandum and articles of association. 
 
The trustees have a duty to identify and review the risks to which the charity is exposed and 
to ensure appropriate controls are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud 
and error 
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Section 2 
 
SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE YEAR 
UNDERTAKEN FOR PUBLIC BENEFIT IN RELATION TO OUR OBJECTS 

 
 
2.1  Background to Charity 
 
Manna House is an advice, advocacy and drop-in support centre for those who are homeless, 
vulnerably housed, lonely or simply needing help. 
 
We have an “open door” policy and seek to offer a welcome to everyone who comes to us. We 
aim to offer what skills, advice, support and practical help that we can. However, Manna House 
is not just a place where people get things done for them, but it is a vehicle for challenging 
clients, staff and volunteers alike to make those vital personal changes that will help us all to 
be more valuable contributors to the life and development of our community. 
 
We offer a safe, comfortable and non-threatening environment, where clients can access a 
range of services. We offer housing advice and advocacy, and our Open House programme 
offers a drop-in and specialised learning opportunities in our Skills Café. 
 
Every day we see people who have been supported by Manna House showing increased 
confidence and social skills; some gain educational certificates, others go on to be housed or 
employed for the first time.  

All members of the team - staff and volunteers alike – are to be commended for their dedication, 
patience and hard work. 

 

2.2  Background to Accounts 

 
These accounts are for the charitable company limited by guarantee – Manna House 
(Cumbria) for the twelve months ended 31st August 2017. 
 
The accounts for our sister charity, Manna House Project can be accessed separately under 
the Charity number 1096164. The Manna House Project oversees the work of ‘Friends of 
Manna House’ (FOMS), a support group which promotes the work of Manna House by 
engaging the wider public in fundraising activities for specific projects or the purchase of capital 
items or consumables not otherwise funded. 
 
 
Cont’d …  
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2.3  Charity Operation 
 

• The Drop In continues as a core component of our service provision. On Tuesdays, 
Wednesdays and Fridays the drop in is open between the hours of 10:00am to 3:00pm. 
During the 12 months to 31st August 2017 we held 151 drop-ins with a total of 3,322 
client visits to these sessions.  

 
• Housing Advice, benefits Advice and Advocacy support is available during drop-

in opening hours and also by appointment on Mondays. During the 12 months to 31st 
August we had an average of 93 regular clients accessing our advice service at any 
one time. The main categories of support being provided to these clients was advice 
relating to housing and accommodation, benefits and debt, general support and 
advocacy. 

 

• In terms of our Housing and benefits advice service, we continued to offer advice to 
enable clients to access a range of accommodation and to prevent them from becoming 
homeless. This included placements in emergency, temporary, permanent, and 
alternative accommodation, as well as resettlement and rehabilitation programmes. 
Based on our experience we estimate that around 25 people in any quarter would 
benefit from the provision of emergency accommodation other than that statutorily 
provided by the local Council.  

 

• Client Support is offered to help clients with practical needs such as showering, 
clothes washing and drying. We have supplies of clothes, food and furniture which have 
been donated and are available to those in need. We work closely with King’s Food 
Bank and have provided 186 referrals to them Aug 2016- Sept 2017.  

 

• The Skills Café is open on Wednesdays from 10:00am to 3:00pm. On average we 
have around 12-15 clients engaged in learning opportunities - from workshops and 
mentoring to “crews” who clean or cook or garden at any one time. This equates to 
around 600 client engagements over a year. Workshops during the year were 
suggested by our clients including basic IT, team working, benefits, budgeting, art and 
crafts, healthy eating and organic gardening. 

 
 

• Emergency Winter Night Shelter was again co-ordinated by Manna House.  This ran 
from 1st December 2016 to 28th February 2017 and involved training 64 volunteers from 
different churches across the district. Five different churches hosted the shelter, one 
each night for the winter period. Ultimately 11 individuals made use of the shelter over 
the period, some for extended periods of time. The shelter has become an essential 
part of the Manna House service provision and it is intended to open again next winter. 
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2.4   Other Activities  
 
Fundraising and holiday activities became front and centre of Manna House events, providing 
staff, clients and volunteers alike with a focus within the context of the seasons and cycle of 
the “Manna House Year”. Coffee morning, Swim-a-thon, Easter Feast, Folk Concerts, Garden 
Party, Harvest Festival, Auction, Tree Decorating and Christmas meal all engaged teams of 
our stakeholders, especially Friends of Manna House, in planning, organising and 
implementing.  This is, in large part, how we create community and give meaning and purpose 
to our joint efforts.  
 
2.5   Overview  
 
Manna House has seen a steady demand for its services. We have continued not only to 
deliver but to refine and develop our services in order to reflect the needs of our clients.  
 
Manna House has more vigorously pursued its policy of raising the profile of its work and the 
needs of the homeless and vulnerably housed in the town, district and wider region. This is 
being accomplished through our activities in the community and participation in the Mental 
Health Liaison Group, South Lakeland Equality and Diversity Partnership and many speaking 
engagements, ie. schools, churches and local groups. We have also continued to host and 
coordinate a regular Provider Forum which is attended by a wide range of partners all working 
with vulnerable adults from across South Lakeland. 
 
Manna House continues to deliver targeted support to some of the most vulnerable adults in 
our community. We are very aware of the dedication of our team of staff and volunteers and 
also the high level of support from the wider community. I want to take this opportunity to thank 
everyone involved in whatever capacity for their help and support over the last 12 months. 
 
 
Approved by the Trustees and signed on their behalf by: 
 

 
Mr Colin Greaves, 
Chairman, Manna House 
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 
The Trustees (who are also directors of Manna House (Cumbria) for the purposes of company 
law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 
 
Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year 
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group 
and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and 
expenditure, of the charitable company/group for that period. 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the trustees are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP; 
• make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any 

material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charitable company will continue in business. 
 
The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable 
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and the group and 
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
In so far as the trustees are aware: 

• There is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s external examiner 
is unaware; and 

• The Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware 
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the external examiner is aware of 
that information. 

 
The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial 
information included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom 
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation 
in other jurisdictions. 
 
On behalf of the Trustees 

 
Mr Colin Greaves 
Chairman 
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Statement of Financial Activities as at 31/08/2017 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Restricted 
Funds 

Endowment 
Funds 

Total funds Prior period 
total funds 

 

 

£ £ £ £ £ 
Income and endowments 
from:Donations and legacies  74,263  75,402  0  149,665  150,456

Charitable activities  3,251  0  0  3,251  10,381

Other trading activities  5,974  0  0  5,974  8,147

 69  0Investments  0  69  430

Total  158,959  169,415 0 75,402 83,557
Expenditure on: 

 8,518  3,538  0  12,056  10,489Raising funds 
 146,931 67,738  0  161,560 93,822Charitable activities 

 633 0 0 633  349Other 

Total  102,974  71,276  0  174,250  157,769

 0  0  0  0  0Net gains/ (losses) on 

Net income/(expenditure) -19,417  4,126  0 -15,291  11,646

Transfers between funds  3,060 -3,060  0  0  0

 0 1,066-16,356 -15,291  11,646Net Movement in Funds 

Reconciliation of Funds 
 24,754  59,630Total funds brought forward  0  84,384

Total funds carried forward  69,093 8,398  60,695  0
 

 
 
 

Note: Basis of preparation 
 
These accounts have been prepared on the basis of historic cost in accordance with Financial Reporting 
Standards for Smaller Enterprises (FRSSE). 
 
There has been no change to the accounting policies this year or the previous year’s accounts.  
 
Note: Details of certain items of expenditure 
 
No trustees were paid or reimbursed out of pocket expenses or to third parties for expenses incurred by 
trustees. 
 
The independent examiner was paid £230 examination fees. 
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AVERAGE NUMBER OF FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES IN THE YEAR: 
 

Parts of organisation where 
employees work 

This year Last year 

Fundraising 0.3 0.3 
Charitable work 5.5 5.5 
Governance 0.2 0.2 
Other Nil Nil 
Total 6.0 6.0 
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Balance Sheet as at 31/08/2017 

Total funds Prior year funds 

 

  

 

Fixed assets 
 5,315  3,103Tangible assets 

Total fixed assets  5,315  3,103
Current assets 

Debtors  9,453  15,309
Cash at bank and in hand  74,464  71,425

Total current assets  83,917  86,735

Liabilities 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year  20,138  5,454

Net current assets/  63,779  81,281
Total assets less current liabilities  69,093  84,384

Total net assets or liabilities  69,093  84,384

The funds of the charity: 

Restricted income funds  42,051  59,630
 27,042  24,754Unrestricted funds 

Total unrestricted funds  27,042  24,754

Total charity funds  69,093  84,384

 
 
 
Note: Tangible fixed assets   
 
 
 

 
  

 Freehold 
land and 
buildings 

Plant 
machinery 
and motor 
vehicles 

Fixtures 
fittings and 
equipment 

Payments 
on account 
and assets 

under 
construction 

Total 

Balance 
brought fwd 

Nil Nil £3,103 Nil £3,103 

Additions Nil Nil £2,845 Nil £2,845 

Revaluations Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Disposals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Transfers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Balance 
carried fwd 

Nil Nil £5,948 Nil £5,948 
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT PROVISIONS 
 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method over a period of 10 years. 
 
 

 Freehold land 
and buildings 

Plant 
machinery 
and motor 
vehicles 

Fixtures 
fittings and 
equipment 

Payments on 
account and 
assets under 
construction 

Total 

Depreciation in 
year 

Nil Nil £633 Nil £633 

Impairment 
provisions 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Revaluations Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Disposals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Transfers Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
 

Net book value 
 

Nil Nil £5,315 Nil £5,315 

 
 
Note:  Debtors and Prepayments   
 

 
Analysis of debtors 

Amounts 
falling due 
within one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
within one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
after more 
than one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
after more 
than one 

year 

 This year Last year This year Last year 

Trade Debtors Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Amounts from subsidiary undertakings Nil Nil Nil  Nil 

Other Debtors £700 £700 Nil Nil 

Prepayments and accrued income £103,514 £8,753 Nil Nil 

Total £104,214 £9,453 Nil Nil 

 
 

 
Analysis of creditors 

Amounts 
falling due 
within one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
within one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
after more 
than one 

year 

Amounts 
falling due 
after more 
than one 

year 

 This year Last year This year Last year 

Loans and Overdrafts Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Trade Creditors Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Amounts to subsidiary undertakings Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Other Debtors Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Prepayments and accrued income Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Total Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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RESTRICTED FUNDS RECEIVED IN 12 MONTH PERIOD TO 31ST AUGUST 2017 
 
 

Grant Giver Date of 
Grant 

Amount of 
Grant  

Grant 
unspent at 

31/08/17 

Purpose 

South Lakeland District 
Council 

Nov 2016 £6,000 £0 Housing Advice 

South Lakeland District 
Council 

Apr 2017 £6,000 £1,000 Housing Advice 

Big Lottery May 2017 £19,550 £0 Open House Project 

Big Lottery Jun 2017 £34,852 £12,780 Open House Project 

Friends of Manna House Jun 2017 £4,000 £4,000 New Building 

Oliver Borthwick Memorial 
Trust 

Jul 2017 £5,000 £4,237 Open House Project 

Total 
 

 
 

£75,402 £22,017 
 

 
 

 
Restricted funds can only be used for particular restricted purposes within the objects of the charity. 
Restrictions arise when specified by the donor or when funds are raised for particular restricted 
purposes 
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Notes to the Financial Statements ending 31 August 2017 

 
 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Year Total Last Year 
A1 -  Donation & Legacies      
      
Donations Churches & 
Groups 

10,708 0 0 10,708 11,241 

Donations - Any 4,502 0 0 4,502 4,171 
Donations - Individuals 11,195 0 0 11,195 12,584 
Donations – Business 3,982 0 0 3,982 3,272 
Gift Aid Tax Recoverable 1,238 0 0 1,238 1,927 
Grants Received 42,639 75,402 0 118,041 117,262 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 74,264 75,402 0 149,666 150,457 
      
A2   -  Charitable Activities      
Flood Damage Claim 2820 0 0 2820 10,381 
Income Contras 431 0 0 431 0 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 3,251 0 0 3,251 10,381 
      
A3  -  Other Trading Activities      
      
Fundraising Income 4,534 0 0 4,534 5,212 
Placements Income 0 0 0 0 1,900 
Rental Income 1,440 0 0 1,440 1,035 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 5,974 0 0 5,974 8,147 
      
A4  -  Investments      
Interest Received 69 0 0 69 430 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 69 0 0 69 430 
      
A5  -  Other      
 0 0 0 0 0 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 0 0 0 0 0 
      
B1  -  Raising Funds      
Fundraising Costs 8,181 2,548 0 10,729 880 
Food 140 0 0 140 929 
Food for Night Shelter 342 0 0 342 5 
Food Contra -132 0 0 -132 0 
Professional Fees 669 990 0 1,659 8,575 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 9,200 3,538 0 12,738 10,489 
      

 
 

Cont’d 
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Notes to the Financial Statements ending 31 August 2017 (Cont’d) 

 
 Unrestricted Restricted Endowment Year Total Last Year 
B2 - Charitable Expenses 
(exp) 

     

Salaries & Wages 33,512 60,715 0 94,226 118,095 
Recruitment 1,477 0 0 1,477 0 
Payroll Charge 328 0 0 328 0 
Pension Contributions 1,066 1,836 0 2,902 5,173 
Employer NIC 5,897 261 0 6,158 0 
Volunteer Training Costs 64 0 0 64 100 
Staff Training Costs 62 613 0 675 537 
Night Shelter Co-ordinator 2,800 2,000 0 4,800 1,085 
Travel Expenses 155 17 0 172 142 
Subsistence Costs 120 0 0 120 215 
Heat & Light 2,263 439 0 2,702 2,055 
Rent 8,670 0 0 8,670 12,702 
Insurances 24,102 0 0 24,102 0 
Cleaning 46 0 0 46 109 
Vermin Control 229 0 0 229 225 
Waste Disposal 1,226 0 0 1,226 1,169 
Repairs & Maintenance 2,322 0 0 2,322 215 
Telephone 829 211 0 1,040 2,379 
Postage 135 41 0 177 54 
Stationary 116 38 0 155 184 
Printing/Photocopying  529 268 0 798 369 
Publicity Costs 512 0 0 512 0 
IT Costs 1,204 0 0 1,204 508 
Equipment Purchases 1,540 0 0 1,540 -496 
Equipment Repair 0 0 0 0 355 
Building Project Management 325 1,300 0 1,625 0 
Sundries 721 0 0 721 661 
Subscriptions 2,891 0 0 2,891 1,057 
Suspense 0 0 0 0 40 
 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 93,141 67,739 0 160,882 146,933 
      
B3  -  Other (exp)      
Depreciation Office 
Equipment 

97 0 0 97 97 

Depreciation Kitchen 
Equipment 

536 0 0 536 252 

 ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- 
 633 0 0 633 349 
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List of Financial Donors 12 months to 31st August 2017 
 
 

 
Authorities 
South Lakeland District Council (DCLG)   
 
Charitable and Other Donors* 
Lupton Tower Trust     Hadfield Trust 
Oliver Borthwick Memorial Trust    Ashton Trust 
Brian Lancaster Trust     Cumbria Health on Call 
Mayor’s Charity Kendal     Friends of Manna House 
The Stephenson Trust     Lloyds Bank Foundation 
Big Lottery Fund     Kentdale Charitable Trust 
South Lakeland District Council     
  
Business Donors* – Financial 
ASDA, Kendal 
Lakeland 
Lakeland Fireplaces 
Thomson Hayton Ltd      
 
Church and Group Donors* - Financial  
Sawrey Parochial Church    Grange over Sands Methodist Church 
Kendal Relief in Need     Underbarrow Women’s Institute 
St James Church Staveley    Sandylands Methodist Church 
Crosthwaite Parocial Church    Independent Networking Group     
Coniston Primary School    Sedbergh PCC 
Ings Parochial Church Council (PCC)   Coniston PCC 
Levens PCC      Jesus Church Troutbeck PCC     
St Peters Mansergh     Parr Street Church, Kendal 
Beetham Church      Holy Trinity Church, Kendal    
St Catherine’s Crook     Holy Trinity Church, Brathay 
Allithwaite PCC      St Thomas PCC Kendal 
Kendal United Reform Church    Greenside Carollers 
St Martin’s Windermere     Helsington PCC 
Haversham PCC     Stricklandgate Methodist Church 
Women’s Methodist Network, Kendal      
Carnforth Free Methodist Church   Burneside PCC 
Inner Wheel Club, Kendal    Kendal Quaker Meeting    
Burneside PCC      Mansergh Church   
St Mark’s Church, Natland    Holy Trinity and St George Kendal   
Milnthorpe PCC      Old Hutton Church 
Cartmell Fell PCC      Underbarrow Parochial Church 
Holme PCC       
United Benefice of Staveley, Ings and Kentmere Field Broughton PCC 

 
*We also received a number of individual and anonymous financial donations. 
*During the period we received a large number of donations of goods such as food, toiletries and clothes. Donors 
ranged from individuals, churches, schools, clubs, various groups, charities and local businesses. 
 
Thank you to all our donors, supporters including Friends of Manna House (FOMS), helpers, volunteers, prayer 
partners, trustees, and employees for their ongoing support, help and encouragement. 
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